




 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE:   June 14, 2018       AGENDA ITEM: 2A 
 
TITLE:   
Review the City's Contract with Visit Bastrop dated September 12, 2017 regarding scope of 
service and deliverables along with purpose of annual workshop (dialog about performance, 
establish future goals and objectives, and other topics that may be relevant to the components of 
this contract in early June of each year). 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Visit Bastrop Contract 

• Visit Bastrop Business Plan for FY 2018 

• Visit Bastrop By-Laws 

• PowerPoint Overview 
 
   
 
 

























































































































1 

SALES & MARKETING   

BUSINESS PLAN 

FY 2018 
 

Presented to: Bastrop City Council  

November 28, 2017 



2 

Visit Bastrop Overview 

Mission 

The mission of Visit Bastrop is to stimulate the economic growth of the City by marketing the Bastrop region as a  
vibrant visitor destination including conventions, meetings, outdoor recreation and special events. 

Mission 

Vision 

To be recognized and respected as a leading destination marketing organization and to achieve economic vitality for 
our destination with success through integrity, enthusiasm and creative involvement for the promotion of Bastrop as 
a great Texas small town destination. 

Visit Bastrop Is: 

• A private, not-for-profit organization (501c6). 
• Marketing and selling Bastrop as a destination. 
• Focused on brand development and promotion to increase leisure travel, conventions, meetings, special events 

and outdoor recreation use by visitors. 
• Funded by Hotel Occupancy Tax through a contract with the City of Bastrop. 
• A Board of Directors of approximately 15. 
• A full-time staff of currently four with one part-time. 
• An equal opportunity employer. 

Values 

• We are goal-oriented and results-directed. 
• We look for opportunities, and we build on them. 
• We are responsible and accountable. 
• We value quality in our work, service and ourselves. 
• We strive for excellence, honesty and integrity. 
• We encourage teamwork while expecting high levels of individual performance. 
• We treat our customer, partners and staff with courtesy, respect and fairness. 
• We honor our promises and commitments. 
• We maximize communication to minimize misunderstanding and encourage feedback, so we can continually  

improve. 
• We acknowledge our role to provide significant economic impact to our community and citizens through the  

value of helping to create a vibrant hospitality industry. 

2017-2018 Board of Directors 

Board Member Community Asset  

Representation 

Board Member Community Asset  

Representation 

Clint Howard, Chair Arts David Jacobs Hyatt Lost Pines 

Rick Brackett, Vice-Chair Nightlife/Entertainment Robert Jones Sports 

Kevin Lee Plunkett, Treasurer Restaurants Naseem Khonsari Retail 

Cindye Wolford Ginsel, Secretary History Dale Lockett Ex-Officio 

Brenda Abbott Venues/Special Events Sarah O’Brien Ex-Officio 

Shawn Anther-Pletsch At-Large Tom Scott At-Large 

Jamie Creacy Outdoors/Recreation Becki Womble Ex-Officio 



3 

Chair’s Message 

 

As Chair of the 2017-2018 Visit Bastrop Board of Directors, it gives me tremendous pleasure to welcome you to our 
inaugural Marketing and Sales Plan for promoting Bastrop as a great destination. 

As a businessman here for the past 18 years, as well as being an active participant in our Arts industry sector, I can’t 
say enough about the tremendous impact having our first ever destination marketing organization (DMO), Visit 
Bastrop, come to fruition. As Chair of the Board of Directors, I can also tell you that the entire Board understands the 
critical importance of Visit Bastrop in regard to elevating our destination as a place to visit, meet, shop, dine and  
recreate -- and the vital economic impact our organization can and will have on not only individual businesses, but to 
the community at large. 

A tremendous amount of work has been done by what was called the DMO Start-up Board in order for Visit Bastrop 
to become the official DMO for the City.  Anne Smarzik stepped up to the plate early on and dedicated tireless  
energy and effort in support of Visit Bastrop as Chair of the Start-up Board, but had to step down due to health  
reasons just as we became official.  I was able to support Anne’s efforts as Vice-Chair during this period, along with 
other start-up members including Hiren Patel, Tom Scott and Rick Brackett. I also want to thank Sarah O’Brien who 
served as our liaison to the City and helped pave the way in so many ways. 

In addition to helping the City determine the value of creating a DMO, we were able to work with DMOproZ Bill Geist 
who facilitated our Board and the City resulting in the creation of a 501c6 independent organization, representing 
Bastrop’s hospitality industry to ensure representation by specific industry sectors.  We also were successful in 
attracting an experienced DMO leader, Dale Lockett, to come to Bastrop to help us establish the DMO. 

Fast forward to today, and we have come to an agreement with Dale to lead Visit Bastrop for at least one year,     
expediting the ability of the organization to quickly become effective in elevating our brand and bringing in much 
needed economic impact to Bastrop from the hospitality industry.  One of Dale’s first efforts was to almost            
immediately attract and add top-rated talent to the team, including a Director of Sales for conventions/meetings/
sports, a Marketing Manager for our advertising/social media/public relations efforts and a Senior Administrative 
Assistant with excellent Board support background.  All of the team members have hit the ground running and 
played a key role in the development of this document. 

As it is our very first plan developed without baselines and without relevant history to guide us, it needs to be viewed 
as a roadmap and a guide to help us stay focused on our objectives.  But due to its very nature, it is only a guide and 
with Board leadership, staff will at times need flexibility to modify the plan to adjust to shifting environments as we 
encounter them. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me at any time to let me know how we are doing, what your thoughts are about 
marketing and selling our destination and any suggestions on how to improve our efforts to put Bastrop on the map 
and in the minds of potential visitors. 

 

In Hospitality, 

 

 

Clint Howard 

Chair, Visit Bastrop 2017-2018 



4 

Visit Bastrop Staff 

Dale Lockett President & CEO 

Ashton LaFuente Marketing Manager 

Shane Sorenson, TDM, CTE Director of Sales 

Christy Hunn Sr. Administrative Assistant 

Becca Pentland Administrative Assistant 

President’s Message 

 

Welcome to the first-ever Visit Bastrop Marketing and Sales Plan for FY 2017-2018!   

With the formation of Bastrop’s first official destination marketing organization in October of 2017, Visit Bastrop is 
ramping up quickly to provide marketing and sales leadership for Bastrop’s hospitality industry, working in  
partnership with the City of Bastrop, the Bastrop Economic Development Corporation, the Bastrop Chamber of  
Commerce as well as many other organizations focused on the positive growth of our destination. A simpler way of 
presenting this is that we are coming together as an industry, recognizing the crucial impact our hospitality industry 
has on our quality of life. 

With a Board of Directors elected to specifically represent our major hospitality industry sectors, as well as key  
at-large positions, Visit Bastrop is structured to provide a balanced and focused approach in elevating Bastrop as one 
of Texas’ premier small-town destinations.  Leveraging our natural and developed attractions, culture and history, as 
well as recognizing the significant impact of having a world-class resort destination and brand (Hyatt Regency Lost 
Pines Resort) driving the majority of our HOT fund growth, Visit Bastrop’s top priority is to positively impact growth 
of our City’s sales tax, HOT collections and help improve the overall quality of life for our community.  We will  
accomplish this through an unrelenting focus on elevating Bastrop’s brand and desirability as a destination. 

Marketing efforts were initiated immediately upon formal establishment of the organization, as well as acquisition of 
a major event to help drive awareness and demand to our destination.  In addition to those initial efforts, this       
marketing and sales plan will outline the basic efforts of Visit Bastrop over the next fiscal year, providing a road-map 
of the direction our efforts will strive to take us.  Supported by the Board approved budget, our efforts will be        
focused on attracting significant demand from the Houston, Austin, San Antonio and, to some degree the DFW 
Metroplex markets.  However, we also recognize the tremendous opportunity that the proximity of the Austin-    
Bergstrom International Airport represents for domestic and international opportunities for Bastrop and will strive to 
leverage that asset. 

As this is our inaugural effort, there will naturally be some flexibility required in regard to this plan, as there is little to 
no history to work from to guide our efforts.  Understanding of this by our partners and the City is deeply  
appreciated.  

 

Cordially, 

 

 

 

Dale Lockett 

President & CEO, Visit Bastrop 



5 

Trends & Issues 

Bastrop is uniquely different, in a positive way, from most small Texas communities regarding our hospitality         

industry.   

First, we have the Hyatt Lost Pines Resort located in our extra territorial jurisdiction; which means that Bastrop not 

only receives the hotel occupancy tax generated, but we can claim the resort as one of our major attractions. The 

ability to partner with their professional sales and marketing team and to collaborate in joint sales and marketing 

efforts, is a huge benefit to Bastrop and something most other competing small destinations simply do not have. 

Second, we have an exceptionally strong tie to history, including a well-preserved historic Main Street located on the 

banks of the Colorado River.  This historically preserved setting, which offers restaurants, entertainment, shopping 

and art, also affords visitors the opportunity to canoe, kayak or stand up paddle board right from our downtown.  

When you add in all of our other outdoor recreation opportunities, our expansive (for our size) art facilities including 

our Lost Pines Art Center, Deep in the Heart Art Foundry and galleries, you have a destination that pretty much 

offers something for everybody. 

Being this special type of destination matches up perfectly with a trend in what visitors of all generations are seeking 

– an authentic and unique destination where the story of the “place” is being told and can be experienced.  Bastrop 

is not “plastic” or contrived. Our historic roots are so deep that we can’t fake what we are or who we are.  Although 

time does not stop here, it certainly has a different beat.  It’s a strength as well as a potential weakness for Bastrop 

in that a misconception could occur that would convey us as being too laid-back, sleepy, or a nothing-happening kind 

of place. 

Another nation- and state-wide trend is that leisure travel is continuing to increase, only dropping off in sectors     

devastated by fires and hurricanes. Group travel (conventions and meetings) are also on the rebound. 

The biggest issue with our group market segment (conventions and meetings) is that our convention center           

desperately needs a convention hotel and some significant improvements to become competitive.  And, we are    

located in the heart of competing meeting destinations (Austin, Houston, San Antonio) that make competing         

exceptionally difficult. 

Perhaps the biggest issue regarding our leisure product is destination consistency.  Many of our restaurants, shops 

and attractions provide excellent customer service, while many do not.  Some are open longer and on weekends, 

many more are not.  A few conduct their own marketing (helping increase the “voice” and reach of Bastrop), most 

do not or cannot.  We also have some improvements required regarding signage and wayfinding, as well as “gussying 

up” the place a bit. 

Another issue to address is that, unfortunately, the only significant destination awareness of Bastrop is from our  

disasters.  This awareness is not one that we desire and can be difficult to overcome (think of Sonoma California as 

they try to recover).  But, with a proper marketing campaign, we can start to replace those outdated perceptions 

with a newer and more vibrant message. 

Overall, the trends and issues that we face in increasing visitors to our destination are either positive and/or fixable.  

The following marketing and sales plan is Visit Bastrop’s first effort to start addressing the trends and issues as we 

strive to elevate our brand to drive increased hotel occupancy tax collections and sales tax collections from visitor 

spending.   



6 

Strategic Marketing Initiatives 

Promotion of Existing Events 

We have recognized a few existing events and will work with those planners to elevate marketing efforts and drive  

demand. (Veteran’s Day Car Show, Lost Pines Christmas and First Fridays) 

Developing New Events  

We have partnered with Texas Music Magazine to create the “Bastrop Music Festival , held on May 17 – 20, 2018. As 

we move forward, we will seek other opportunities along these lines to generate buzz and awareness for Bastrop as a 

destination.  

Social Media 

We were able to gain ownership of the Visit Lost Pines Facebook page and transition it over to Visit Bastrop. This  

allowed us to retain an audience of 44K followers. Our social media presence will be crucial – we immediately have  

access to a following of close to 45k followers – and will want to start generating awareness and creating buzz about 

our destination.   

Website 

We have contracted with SimpleView to host our new website, which went live on November 8, at 11am. The power of 

the SimpleView site allows us to house our CRM & CMS together which gives us the ability to combine meeting sales, 

industry partner management, forecasting, consumer marketing and reporting all in one place.  

Brand Development 

We will be conducting an RFP for brand development companies with the goal of launching a new brand by summer 

2018. 

Advertising Plan of Action  
 

Due to more time being required for Visit Bastrop to partner with Proof Advertising in development of a                    
comprehensive advertising plan, we have established a short-term focus of marketing what is happening in 
Bastrop.  There are a number of excellent events and activities in Bastrop that have the potential to attract out-of-area 
visitors but none of them, in our opinion, have been marketed effectively (due either to lack of funding or lack of      
focus).  Using our marketing resources, we are focusing on attracting attention to our destination by “elevating” select 
events and activities though advertising and marketing efforts. We are striving to combine a “hometown-small town” 
culture with a vibe that conveys a “happening and eclectic” destination that is a must visit place. 

Although we have not identified all of the media we will be partnering with, we will be using publications such as Texas 
Monthly, Texas Highways, AAA Journey, Texas Music and others to get our message out.  We will also strongly consider 
using newspaper exposure in the Houston and Austin markets, as well as select radio platforms such as Pandora.  We 
have created a strong Facebook presence and will be using boosted postings and live streaming to elevate Bastrop as a 
viable destination. And we anticipate keeping a billboard presence on Hwy 71, in both directions. 

We will also be promoting our convention and meeting capabilities, focused on industry trade groups such as the Texas 
chapter of the American Society of Association Executives (ASAE).  We will be partnering with the Hyatt Lost Pines    
Resort in our messaging regarding them and elevating the capabilities of our Convention Center and local hotels with 
meeting space. 

Marketing 

Mission 

Specifically market the Bastrop region as a “tourism” destination by establishing and elevating our brand through 
advertising, media/public relations, website promotion, social media and, in general, getting our unique story ex-
posed to potential visitors.  



7 

Public Relations 

We will continue to partner with Hiebing on a month-to-month basis and continue to boost awareness about the 

events and attractions in Bastrop, and drive traffic to them by the way of PR push that engages local and regional  

media across Texas. Our 2018 PR program will focus on spotlighting Bastrop’s seasonal events as well as relevant travel

-centric opportunities that arise. We will garner placement by pitching editors, submitting listings to online and print 

calendars, and deploying distribution through iReach and PR Newswire. Proactive media relations will be crucial for 

Bastrop to maintain a presence in top-tier consumer publications locally across Texas.  

Advertising 

We will continue to partner with Proof Advertising to assist us with all marketing initiatives including: strategic  

direction, account and project management, media planning/buying/optimization/analysis, creative development,  

creative production and meetings and reporting.  

Situational Analysis 

Due to the fact that there are no marketing baselines established, as this is our first effort, we will be using this year 
to establish those baselines in regard to web, social media and advertising metrics.  Each of our individual marketing 
efforts will have metric tracking required to establish those baselines.  In future Visit Bastrop plans, specific goals will 
be established in regard to increasing the exposure of our brand and the return on investment (ROI) of those efforts. 



8 

Targeted Existing Events 

Veteran’s Day Car Show:  

• Objective: work with Bastrop Area Cruisers to  

promote travel to the Veteran’s Day weekend  

celebration. 

• Target Audience: Texas travelers and car enthusiasts 

thru print/audio/digital/OOH/social.  

• Print Ad Placement: full page color ads in AAA Texas 

Journey & Texas Highways; regional publications that 

inspire Texans to travel. 

• Pandora Commercial: Streaming audio provides  

guaranteed ad exposure to audience segment.  

Pandora commercial targeted audience ages: 23-64 in 

ATX & HOUSTON (travelers and/or auto enthusiasts)  

• Billboard (OOH):  placement east and west of town 

increases awareness of event  

• How are we reaching them? Print, Audio, Digital,  

OOH (out of home) & Social Media 

Pandora Internet Radio– Targeted Advertisement 



9 

WEST BOUND  EAST BOUND  

OOH | Billboard Placement (HWY 71) 

• West Bound: open left hand read, large sized unit , 12.6 miles from Bastrop  

• East Bound: right hand read, large sized unit, 4.4 miles from Bastrop  

Print Ad Placement: 

 

• Full Page Four Color (FP4C) Ads in regional 

publications that inspire Texans to travel.  

• AAA Texas Journey: 85% of readers are  

inspired to visit destinations featured in the  

magazine.  

• Texas Highways: 73% of readers visited Texas 

destinations as a result of reading the  

magazine. 

Targeted Existing Events…(cont’d) 



10 

PRE-EVENT WEB CLICK ADS—DRIVE TRAFFIC TO WEBSITE  

Targeted Existing Events (cont’d) 



11 

During Event Live Coverage  

Facebook live streaming of event  gets 10X more comments, watched 3X longer than traditional videos.  

www.visitbastrop.com / previous website  

Trackable link 

has 251 clicks 

Targeted Existing Events…(cont’d) 



12 

Day-of Social Media Presence  

Targeted Existing Events (cont’d) 



13 

New/Potential Events 

Bastrop Music Festival | May 17—20, 2018 

Featuring more than 30 bands and 40 shows, the Bastrop Music Festival takes center stage May 17—20, 2018, in 

historic Bastrop. The inaugural music festival includes performances by bands of numerous genres across the city, 

with a mixture of wristband only nighttime shows and free daytime events. This festival is produced by the Texas 

Music, a quarterly magazine owned by Open Sky Media. The festival will showcase music in a variety of intimate  

venues, such as Neighbor’s Kitchen and Yard, the Kleinart Building at Viejo’s Tacos y Tequila and Old Town            

Restaurant and Bar. Free daytime concerts, including shows for kids, will take place at additional Bastrop businesses 

and public spaced during the four day festival.  

Lost Pines Christmas  

• Partnering with The Main Street Program  to promote travel to 

the Lost Pines Christmas celebration throughout the month of 

December. 

• We will promote the overall event, calling special attention to the 

individual events.  

• Efforts will include OOH, digital & social media. 

Targeted Existing Event (cont’d) 

Austin Monthly 

• Full Page Ads: April & May | 50K ROS Ads: April & May | Facebook Post: May  

San Antonio Magazine 

• Full Page Ads: March, April & May | 75K ROS Ads: April | From our partner exclusive: April | Facebook Post: May  

Texas Music Magazine 

• Two-page spread (one for city, one for festival); Fall, Winter & Spring  | Digital Advertising (website/social/e-

blasts)  | Editorial Content (4 pages)  



14 

Group Sales 
(Conventions, Meetings, Sports, Motorcoach) 

Mission 

Our Group Sales efforts will primarily focus around two goals; 1) partner with the Hyatt to provide quality convention 
and meeting leads for them as well as providing off-site group event opportunities for Bastrop. 2) To provide a strong 
sales effort on behalf of the Bastrop Convention Center to attract groups utilizing room nights in our hotels.  Another 
major effort will be to evaluate our potential for sports groups (youth and adult events).  We will also represent all of 
Bastrop’s other meeting venues and locations. 

Situational Analysis 

In regard to our two major priorities, since neither effort has previously been conducted, we will need some time to 
develop strategies and tactics to effectively sell and market to the convention and meeting segment.  For the Hyatt, 
we will be a supplemental sales force to provide lead generation as well as support to help successfully close business 
on a case-by-case basis.  Our goal is to encourage any group that we are involved with to include at least one event in 
Bastrop proper to elevate the economic impact potential of the Hyatt groups for our destination.  In regard to the 
Convention Center, we will establish whether there is a market for our product and if that market warrants significant 
marketing and sales efforts.  In essence, a major “discovery” process will be engaged.  

Tradeshows & Industry Meetings 

Date Conference/Tradeshow Market Segment 

Nov 6-8 Connect Texas Association 

Jan 7-10 Professional Convention Management Association Corporate/Association 

Jan 23-25 Southwest Showcase Corporate/Association 

Jan 30- Feb 1 Religious Conference Management Association Religious 

Mar 6-8 Christian Meetings and Conventions Association Religious 

Apr 12-13 Global Meetings Industry Day Corporate 

Apr 22-25 National Association of Sports Commissions Sports 

May 4-7 Military Reunion Network- Central States Roundtable Military 

May TBD Plan Your Meetings Austin Corporate/Association 

Aug 18-21 American Society of Association Executives Association 

Aug 23-25 Connect Marketplace Association/Specialty 

Sep 16-18 Texas Society of Association Executives Association 

Oct/TBD/18 Plan Your Meetings Houston Corporate/Association 

Sales Marketing 

Selling Bastrop as a meeting and event destination requires a multi-faceted approach that must be intentionally     
developed with a broad range of community involvement and a narrow focus on providing an unparalleled visitor  
experience unique to Bastrop, reflecting its’ culture, heritage, and opportunity. 

The first objective in selling Bastrop as a destination is creating the awareness that Bastrop exists and is ready and 
available for group business. By attending industry tradeshows and conferences, we will be meeting face to face with 
meeting and event planners across various market segments to inform them about Bastrop’s various meeting and 
event facilities including the Convention & Exhibit Center, Hyatt Regency Lost Pines Resort, and the various limited 
service hotels and alternative meeting facilities throughout Bastrop and the surrounding area.  



15 

Sales Marketing (cont’d) 

Despite previous marketing efforts for the area, without these face to face interactions a vital part of the                 
conversation with meeting and event planners was missing. The previously listed industry tradeshows and              
conferences attract many of the top meeting professionals in their respective markets and represent millions of     
dollars a year in meeting business.  

The Visit Bastrop sales staff will be active and visible at various community events and networking opportunities. This 
will increase local awareness of visitor impact to the community and allow us to connect with local professionals   
involved in various organizations and associations. We will seek to leverage these local contacts to prospect hosting 
their respective organization’s events in Bastrop. Local support and representation is a key factor of meeting planners 
and decision makers when seeking a destination for their event. 

In partnership with the Hospitality and Downtown Department, we will create a hospitality training program specific 
to the Bastrop area for front-line employees at hotels, restaurants, and local merchants. In partnership with local 
merchants and restaurants, we will seek to establish a “visitor rewards” program or “show your badge” program that 
will incentivize conference and event attendees to support the local community. 

Buyer Education Tours (FAM Tours) 

As interest in the destination grows from the marketing and sales efforts, Visit Bastrop will plan Buyer Education 
Tours or Familiarization (Fam) Tours. These will serve as opportunities for strategically invited meeting and event 
planners to experience a broad sampling of what Bastrop offers regarding lodging, meeting facilities, dining,            
entertainment, and recreation that attendees may experience when visiting Bastrop. For many destinations, these 
tours produce highly lucrative event bookings as well as provide us with new Brand Ambassadors in the meetings and 
events industry.  

Convention & Exhibit Center 

The Convention Center Staff, in cooperation with the Hospitality & Downtown Department and Visit Bastrop, has 
made many revisions to booking policies to make it easier for meetings and events to book. Any event seeking to 
book space beyond 18 months out must be approved by Visit Bastrop, so that preference is given to events that also 
use hotel room nights. Traditionally, convention and meeting planners book 2-4 years out, so this would ensure that 
the space is available when they are undergoing site selections.  Further analysis is being conducted as to what type 
of groups can and will utilize the space so that potential business can be strategically targeted for the Center.  

Special Events 

Mission 

Bastrop has several established special events that have been somewhat successful in the past with limited marketing 
support.  Those include:  Veteran’s Day Car Show, Lost Pines Christmas Celebration, First Friday Art Walks, the Cham-
ber’s Fourth of July Celebration and some others.  Our goal is to provide additional marketing support to see if  
attendance and direct spend can be increased.  

Situational Analysis 

In addition to elevating existing events to drive economic impact through increased attendance, Visit Bastrop will be 
looking to encourage additional special events, especially for periods that the destination needs additional impact 
regarding hotel occupancy and sales tax generation.  Of particular interest will be events that can provide positive 
media exposure of our destination and/or economic development opportunities.  



1 
 

 
BYLAWS OF 

BASTROP TX DESTINATION MARKETING ORGANIZATION, INC. 
 A TEXAS NONPROFIT CORPORATION 

 
 

These bylaws (referred to as the “Bylaws”) govern the affairs of the BASTROP TX 
DESTINATION MARKETING ORGANIZATION, a public instrumentality and a non-profit 

corporation (hereinafter referred to as the “Corporation”) created under Section 
351.101(c) of the Tax Code, Title 3, Chapter 351, Subchapter B, et seq., as amended 

(hereinafter referred to as the “Act”). 
 

ARTICLE I 
 

These bylaws constitute the code of rules adopted by BASTROP TX DESTINATION 
MARKETING ORGANIZATION, INC. for the regulation and management of its affairs. 
The Corporation’s principal office is located at (address TBD) , Bastrop, Texas  
 

ARTICLE II 
Purpose 

 
The BASTROP, TEXAS DESTINATION MARKETING ORGANIZATION, Inc. shall be 
the primary brand advocate for the City of Bastrop by bringing groups together, through 
unity and representation, in order to leverage community assets and activities for the 
maximum benefit of the hospitality and the meeting, conference and event industries of 
Bastrop and the Lost Pines Region. 
 
 

ARTICLE III 
Board of Directors 

 
(1) Powers 

The Board of Directors of the Corporation is vested with the management of the 
business and affairs of the Corporation, subject to the Texas Business 
Organizations Code, the Certificate of Formation, and these bylaws. 
 

 
(2) Qualifications 

a. Directorship shall not be denied to any person on the basis of race, creed, 
sex, religion, or national origin. 

b. Employees of the Corporation, other than the CEO, are ineligible to serve 
on the Board of Directors.   

c. The Board of Directors shall consider an individual’s experience, 
accomplishments, and education background in appointing Directors to 



2 
 

the Board to ensure that the interest and concerns of all segments of the 
community are considered. 

d. Each Director shall have at least one (1) of the following qualifications: 
i. Experience in management or in an executive capacity. 
ii. Experience in evaluation of financial and business records and 

projections. 
iii. Education, training, or experience useful to the Corporation’s 

purposes. 
 

(3) Number of Directors 
 The Board of Directors will consist of eleven to thirteen Directors. 
 
(4) Composition of the Board 
 A voting member of the Board of Directors shall represent one of the following 
community assets and activities: 

1. Arts 
2. History 
3. Hotels/Lodging 
4. Restaurant  
5. Retail 
6. Sports 
7. Outdoors/Recreation  
8. The Hyatt Regency Lost Pines Resort and Spa 
9. Nightlife/Entertainment 
10. Venues/Special Events 
11. 1 to 3 At-Large seats to represent other community assets and activities 

as the Board may find advantageous to its governance 
 

 
(5) Term of Directors 

Directors shall serve terms of three years. A Director may succeed him or herself 
for only one consecutive term.  After serving two consecutive terms, a Director 
must vacate his or her position for at least one year before being re-elected to 
another term. 

 
(6) Staggered Terms 

There shall be staggered terms of office for the directors so that one-third of the 
directorships shall be up for election each year.  Initially, one-third of the directors 
shall be elected for a one-year term, one-third for a two-year term and one-third 
for a three-year term.  Initial directors serving less than a full three-year term as 
their initial term (i.e., directors who draw a one-year term or two-year term), shall 
be considered to have served a full three-year term for purposes of the limits on 
more than two successive terms. 

 



 

3 
 

(7) Election of Directors 
Elections for Directors filling expired terms shall be held at the meeting prior to 
the final meeting of the fiscal year. A Nominating Committee appointed by the 
Chair will develop a list of candidates.   
 
The Nominating Committee shall solicit each of the industries and interest 
identified in the Composition of the Board section for a list of qualified candidates 
for that area of interest.  The Nominating Committee shall provide the Chair with 
the list of qualified candidates.  The Chair shall put forth each candidate’s name 
to the Board of Directors for a vote.      
 
The election of Directors shall be by majority vote of the Board of Directors 
attending the meeting.  When a re-appointment or replacement is made, the re-
appointment or replacement shall be considered effective on the date that the 
prior term expired (i.e., the new term does not begin on the date of the election).   
 

(8)   Resignation 
Any Director may resign at any time by delivering written notice to the Secretary 
or Chair of the Board of Directors.  Such resignation shall take effect upon receipt 
or, if later, at the time specified in the notice. 

 
(9) Removal 

Any Director may be removed for actions that are not in the best interest of the 
corporation, and its businesses and residents, at any time, by a two-thirds 
majority of the entire Board of Directors, at a Regular or Special Meeting called 
for that purpose.   
 
Any Director under consideration of removal must first be notified about the 
consideration by written notice at least five days prior to the meeting at which the 
vote takes place.  
 
Any Director that misses three consecutive meetings without good cause, will be 
considered to have resigned, effective at the conclusion of the third meeting. At 
the next meeting of the Board at which a quorum is present, the Board by 
majority vote can reinstate the Director.  

 
(10) Vacancies 

Vacancies shall be filled by majority vote of the remaining members of the Board 
of Directors and the Director filling the vacancy shall serve for the remainder of 
the term that was vacated.  Vacancies shall be filled as soon as practical. Any 
Director may make nominations to fill vacant directorships. 

 
(11) Compensation  



 

4 
 

Directors shall not receive any salaries or other compensation for their services, 
but, by resolution of the Board of Directors, may be reimbursed for any actual 
expenses incurred in the performance of their duties for the Corporation, as long 
as a majority of disinterested Directors approve the reimbursement.  The 
Corporation shall not loan money or property to, or guarantee the obligation of, 
any Director or any entity in which a director has a “financial or personal interest” 
as defined in Article III (12) below. 

 
(12)     Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest 

Whenever a director or officer or a family member of a director or officer has a 
financial or personal interest in any matter coming before the Board of Directors, 
such Director or officer shall (a) fully disclose the nature of the interest, and (b) 
withdraw from voting on the matter. Any matter before the board for which a 
director or officer has indicated a potential conflict of interest will be approved 
only when a majority of disinterested directors determine in good faith and with 
ordinary care that it is in the best interests of the Corporation to do so. The 
minutes of the meeting at which such votes are taken shall record the director or 
officer’s disclosure of a conflict of interest, their abstention from voting, and the 
Board of Director’s rationale for approving the matter. For purposes of this 
provision, the term “financial or personal interest” shall include, besides personal 
interest, interest as director, officer, member, stockholder, shareholder, partner, 
manager, trustee or beneficiary of any corporation, association, trust, 
partnership, limited liability entity, firm, or other entity other than the Corporation. 
For purposes of this provision, the term “family member” means the spouse, 
parent, child, spouse of a child, brother, sister, or spouse of a brother or sister.  

 
(13)     Gifts 

The Board may accept on behalf of the Corporation, any contribution, gift, 
bequest, or devise for the general purposes or for any special purposes of the 
Corporation. 
 

(14)     Ex-Officio Members 
A majority of the Board may appoint ex-officio members of the Board. 
 
This type of membership shall consist of partners with an interest or impact in the 
branding, marketing, and sales of Bastrop and its region. 
 
Ex-Officio members are non-voting members and his or her participation shall not 
count towards a quorum.  
 

 
 



 

5 
 

 
ARTICLE IV 
Committees 

 
(1)  Executive Committee 
 The officers of the Board of Directors and the President/CEO of the Corporation 

constitute the Executive Committee. The President/CEO is an ex-officio member. 
The Executive Committee shall act for and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
when the Board is not in session but shall be accountable to the Board for its 
actions. The Executive Committee may exercise all the powers and authority of 
the Board between meetings except the following: to alter or amend the Articles 
of Incorporation or these Bylaws; to approve any action requiring, under the laws 
of the State of Texas, the approval of the full board; or to fill vacancies on the 
Board. 

 
(2) Standing Committees & Task Forces 

Standing Committees of the Board shall include, but not be limited to, Nominating 
and Budget & Finance. All Standing Committees shall be made up of no less 
than a supermajority of board members. The Chair, with the approval of the 
Board of Directors, shall appoint all Standing Committees and committee Chairs. 
 
Task Forces, designed to analyze and research issues on behalf of the board, 
may be created and dissolved as needed. The Chair, with the approval of the 
Board of Directors, shall appoint all Task Forces. 

 
(3) Advisory Committees 

Advisory Committees and Task Forces may be created as deemed necessary to 
assist the Board in carrying out the mission of the corporation. Membership in 
Advisory Committees shall be made up of no less than a supermajority of non-
board members. The Executive Director, with the approval of the Board of 
Directors, shall establish Advisory Committees as needed when additional 
counsel from the corporation’s stakeholders is desired. 

 
 

 
ARTICLE V 

Board Meetings 
 
(1) Meeting of Directors 

a. The Board shall annually set regular meeting dates and times at such 
place or places and time in the corporate city limits as the Board may 
determine; provided, however, in the absence of any such determination 



 

6 
 

by the Board or in the event of a conflict, the Board chair shall select a 
reasonable place in which to hold the meeting. 

b. The Board shall meet no less than six times a year. 
c. The annual meeting of the Board shall be held at a date and time 

determined by the chair. 
d. The chair in consultation with the vice-chair and President/CEO may call a 

special meeting of the Board. 
e. A majority of the Board may call a special meeting of the Board. 
f. Directors shall be expected to regularly attend all Board meetings. Special 

consideration can be granted for absences for good cause.  
g. Any Director may request an item be placed on the agenda by delivering 

the same in writing to the President/CEO no later than ten (10) days prior 
to the date of the Board meeting. 

 
(2) Open Meetings Act 

All meetings and deliberations of the Board shall be called, convened, held and 
conducted, in accordance with the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings 
Act. 
 
 

 
(3) Notice of Board Meetings 

Notice of the date, time, and place of Regular Meetings shall be given to each 
board member by regular mail, telephone (including voice mail), facsimile, or e-
mail no less than five (5) days prior to the meeting.  Notice of the date, time, and 
place of special meetings shall be given to each board member using the same 
methods, but with no less than 3 days’ notice prior to the meeting, with the 
exception of special meetings held to amend the Certificate of Formation or 
bylaws, for which a fifteen (15) day written notice by mail or e-mail shall be 
required specifying the proposed amendment. 

 
 
(4) Waiver of Notice 

Attendance by a Director at any meeting of the Board of Directors for which the 
Director did not receive the required notice will constitute a waiver of notice of 
such meeting unless the Director objects at the beginning of the meeting to the 
transaction of business on the grounds that the meeting was not lawfully called or 
convened.   

 



 

7 
 

(5) Quorum 
A majority of the incumbent Directors shall constitute a quorum for the purposes 
of convening a meeting or conducting business.  At Board meetings where a 
quorum is present, a majority vote of the Directors attending shall constitute an 
act of the Board unless a greater number is required by the Certificate of 
Formation or by any provision of these bylaws.  

 
(6)  Proxy Voting  

Proxy voting is not permitted.  
 

(7)  Conduct of Business  
a. At the meetings of the Board, matters pertaining to the business of the 

Corporation shall be considered in accordance with the rules of procedure 
as from time to time may be prescribed by the Board by resolution. 

b. At all meetings of the Board, the chair shall preside and, in the absence of 
the chair, in the order of availability, the vice-chair, the treasurer or the 
secretary shall exercise the powers of the chair. 

 
 
 
(8)  Committees of the Board  
 The Board may constitute from time to time committees of the Board that are 
deemed necessary or appropriate. No such committee shall have independent authority 
to act for or in the stead of the Board. 
 

ARTICLE VI 
Officers 

 
(1) Roster of Officers 

The Corporation shall have a Chair, Vice-Chair, Secretary, and Treasurer. The 
Corporation may have, at the discretion of the Board of Directors, such other 
officers as may be appointed by the Directors.  One person may hold two or 
more offices, except those serving as Chair or Vice Chair.  

 
 

 
(2) Election of Officers 

All officers shall be elected to a one-year term. The nominating committee shall 
nominate candidates to present to the Board.  The election shall be conducted in 
the fourth quarter of the fiscal year and following the election of the new Directors 
filling expired terms, or as soon as practical thereafter.  Officers shall remain in 
office until their successors have been selected. Officers are limited to two (2) 
consecutive terms which may be extended to three (3) terms by a two-thirds 



 

8 
 

majority vote of Directors at a meeting where a quorum exists.  The election of 
officers shall be by majority vote of the Board of Directors attending the meeting. 
 

(3) Vacancies 
If a vacancy occurs during the term of office for any elected officer, the Board of 
Directors shall elect a new officer to fill the remainder of the term as soon as 
practical, by majority vote. 

 
(4) Chair 

a. The Chair will act as the principal officer of the Corporation and will supervise 
and control the affairs of the Corporation and shall exercise such supervisory 
powers as may be approved by the Board. 

b. The Chair will perform all duties incident to such office and such other duties 
as may be provided in these bylaws or as may be prescribed from time to time 
by the Board.  The Chair shall preside at all board meetings and shall exercise 
parliamentary control in accordance with Robert’s Rules of Order. 

c. The Chair shall serve as an ex-officio member of all standing committees, 
unless otherwise provided by the Board or these bylaws.   

d. The Chair shall, with the advice of the Board and in accordance with the 
requirements of these bylaws, set the agenda for each meeting of the Board of 
Directors. 

 
(5) Vice Chair 

a. The Vice Chair shall act in place of the Chair in the event of the Chair’s 
absence, inability, or refusal to act, and shall exercise and discharge such 
other duties as may be required by the Board. 

b. The Vice Chair shall serve as the parliamentarian and advise the Chair on the 
proper conduct of meetings as required. 

 
(6) Secretary 

a. The Secretary will perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and 
such other duties as may be required by law, by the Certificate of Formation, 
or by these bylaws. 

b. The Secretary shall attest to and keep the bylaws and other legal records of 
the Corporation, or copies thereof, at the principal office of the Corporation. 

c. The Secretary shall take or ensure that someone takes minutes of all meetings 
of the committees and Board of Directors, and shall keep copies of all minutes 
at the principal office of the Corporation. 

d. The Secretary shall keep a record of the names and addresses of the 
Directors at the principal office of the Corporation. 

e. The Secretary shall, with the approval of the Board of Directors, set up 
procedures for any elections held by the Corporation.  The Secretary shall 
keep a record of all votes cast in such elections.  



 

9 
 

f. The Secretary shall ensure that all records of the Corporation, minutes of all 
official meetings, and records of all votes, are made available for inspection by 
any member of the Board of Directors at the principal office of the Corporation 
during regular business hours. 

g. The Secretary shall see that all notices are duly given in accordance with 
these bylaws or as required by law. 

h. The Secretary shall see that all books, reports, statements, certificates, and 
other documents and records of the Corporation are properly kept and filed 
with copies maintained at the principal office.  

i. In the case of the absence or disability of the Secretary, or the Secretary's 
refusal or neglect to fulfill the duties of Secretary, the Vice Chair shall perform 
the functions of the Secretary. 

 
(7) Treasurer 

a. The Treasurer will keep and maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, 
adequate and correct accounts of the properties and business transactions of 
the corporation. 

b. The Treasurer will ensure the books of account are open to inspection by any 
Director(s) at all reasonable times. 

c. The Treasurer will ensure a financial statement and report of financial affairs of 
the Corporation is provided to the Board at meetings. 

d. The Treasurer shall keep, or cause to be kept, all financing records, books, 
and annual reports of the financial activities of the Corporation at the principal 
office of the Corporation and make them available at the request of any 
Director. 

e. Such office may be combined with that of Secretary or Vice Chair. 
 

(8) Assistant Secretaries and Assistant Treasures 
The Board may appoint assistant secretaries and assistant treasurers as it may 
consider desirable, who shall in general perform such duties as may be assigned 
to them by the Secretary or the Treasurer, or by the Chair or the Board. The 
assistant secretaries and assistant treasurers need not necessarily be Directors. 

 
 

 
ARTICLE VII 

Rules of Procedure 
 

Robert’s Rules of Parliamentary Procedure shall govern the proceeding and 
business of the Board of Directors unless otherwise provided herein. 
 
 

ARTICLE VIII 



 

10 
 

Corporate Employees 
 

(1) Number 
The sole employee of the Corporation responsible to the Board of Directors shall 
be known as the President/CEO.  Unless otherwise directed, the President/CEO 
shall attend all meetings of the Board.  The President/CEO shall not be entitled to 
voting privileges at any of the aforesaid meetings.  All other employees of the 
Corporation shall report to the President/CEO, who is hereby empowered to hire 
and fire employees as necessary to fulfill the objectives and purposes of the 
Corporation in accordance with the wishes of the Board. 
 

(2) Discharge of President/CEO 
 

The President/CEO may be discharged, with or without cause, by a vote of a 
two-thirds majority of all voting Directors and in accordance with the terms of his 
or her employment contract with the Corporation.  A replacement may then be 
appointed by a vote of the majority of all voting Directors. 

 
(3) Executive Director 
 

a. The Board shall employ an Executive Director, who shall be the Chief 
Executive Officer of the Corporation and who shall serve at the will and 
pleasure of the Board. 

b. The Executive Director shall have responsibility for all day-to-day activities of 
the Corporation, and shall be responsible for all applicable administrative 
requirements of its Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, and the Act. 

c. The Executive Director may have a staff to assist in the carrying out of his 
responsibilities. 

d. The Board shall develop a job description for the Executive Director position, 
a performance review schedule and criteria for review, and shall review the 
performance of the Executive Director based upon the schedule and criteria. 

e. The Executive Director and staff shall be required to follow all other current 
Personnel Policies of the City of Bastrop, and for such purposes, the 
Executive Director shall be under the same provisions as those for the City 
Manager. 
 
 



 

11 
 

 
ARTICLE IX 

Operations and Fiscal Management 
 
(1) Execution of Documents 

Unless specifically authorized by the Board of Directors or as otherwise required 
by law, all final contracts, deeds, conveyances, leases, promissory notes, or legal 
written instruments executed in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation 
shall be signed and executed by the Chair or President/CEO (or such other 
person designated by the Board of Directors), pursuant to the general 
authorization of the Board.  All conveyances of land or mineral interests by deed 
shall be signed by the Chair or President/CEO or two other members of the 
Executive Committee as defined in Article IV and must be approved by the Board 
of Directors. A person who holds more than one office in the Corporation may not 
act in more than one capacity to execute, acknowledge, or verify an instrument 
required by law to be executed, acknowledged, or verified by more than one 
Officer. 

 
(2) Disbursement of Funds 

Upon approval of the budget, the President/CEO is authorized to make 
disbursements on accounts and expenses provided for in the budget without 
additional approval of the Board of Directors.  Disbursement shall be by check 
with signature of either two of the following:  Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary, 
Treasurer, President/CEO, or other board members designated as signatures on 
the account, or by check under such guidelines set by the board in accordance 
with the policy on office and financial procedures adopted by the Board or as 
may be amended from time to time. 
Notwithstanding the above, all checks of more than $1500 disbursing funds from 
any of the Corporation’s accounts shall require the signatures of at least two of 
the following:  Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary, Treasurer or President/CEO. 

 
 
 
(3) Books, Records and Accounts 

The Corporation under the direction of the Finance Committee will keep correct 
and complete financial records and will also keep minutes of the proceedings of 
the Board meetings and Committees.  The books shall be kept with detailed 
accounts, in chronological order, or receipts, expenditures, and other 
transactions of the Corporation.  
 

(4) Inspection of Books and Records 
All books and records of this Corporation may be inspected by any Director for 
any purpose at any reasonable time on written demand. 



 

12 
 

 
(5) Amendments 

The Board of Directors may adopt amendments to the Certificate of Formation by 
a vote of two-thirds of Directors present at a meeting where a quorum is present. 
The bylaws may be amended at any time by a vote of two/thirds of Directors at a 
meeting where a quorum is present. 

 
(6) Fiscal Year 
 The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be the same as the fiscal year of the City. 
 
(7) Audit 

Thirty (30) days prior to the close of each fiscal year, the books and records of 
the Corporation shall be audited or reviewed by and independent Certified Public 
Accountant whose report shall be prepared and certified in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards. 

 
(8) Notices 

Whenever, under provision of these By-laws, notice is required to be given to any 

Director or Officer it shall not be construed to mean personal notice, but such 

notice shall be given in writing by mail as shown upon the books of the 

Corporation, via electronic mail, and/or posted on a designated web site to each 

Director or Officer at their address as they appear upon the books of the 

Corporation, or any other known address to such Director or Officer and such 

notice shall be deemed to be given at the time the same shall be thus mailed, 

sent or displayed on the designated website.  Any Director or Officer may waive 

any notice required to be given under these By-Laws. 

(9) Severability 

In the event that any part of provision of these By-laws shall be adjudged 

unlawful or unenforceable under Texas law; the remainder of the Bylaws shall 

nonetheless survive and remain in full force and effect. 

 

ARTICLE X 

Insurance for and Indemnification of Directors and Officers 

(1) Insurance 

The Corporation shall maintain insurance coverage that satisfies all requirements 

of Bastrop, Texas statutory or decisional law for Directors of a corporation that is 

exempt from federal tax under Section 501(c) (6) of the Internal Revenue Code 



 

13 
 

of 1986, as amended, so that the Corporation’s Directors are not personally liable 

for damages that are the result of the acts or omissions of the Corporation’s 

Directors in providing services or performing duties on behalf of the Corporation.  

Nevertheless, a Director shall be liable for damages in any suit in which it is 

found that the Director acted with malice or gross negligence, to the extent that 

judgment for damages exceeds the Corporation’s insurance coverage. 

(2) Indemnification 

The Corporation shall indemnify and hold harmless each of its Directors and 

Officers or his estate against any and all expenses and liabilities, including 

attorneys’ fees, actually and necessarily incurred by him in connection with the 

defense of any action, suit or proceeding, civil criminal, administrative, or 

investigative action, in which he is made a party by reason of his being or having 

been a Director or Officer of the Corporation (whether or not a Director or Officer 

at the time such expenses and liabilities are imposed or incurred by him), except 

in relation to matters as to which he shall be adjudged in such action, suit or 

proceeding to be liable for willful misconduct, gross neglect of duties or criminal 

acts in the performance of his duties as such Director or Officer.  In the event of 

settlement of such action, suit or proceeding without adjudication, indemnity shall 

include reimbursement of amounts paid in settlement and expenses actually and 

necessarily incurred, including attorneys’ fees, by such Director or Officer in 

connection therewith, but such indemnification shall be provided only if the 

Corporation is advised by its counsel that it is the opinion of such counsel that  

a. Such settlement is for the best interest of the Corporation; and  

b. The Director or Officer conducted him or herself in good faith and reasonably 

believed that this conduct was in the best interest of the Corporation and, with 

respect to a criminal proceeding, the Director or Officer had no reasonable 

cause to believe his action was unlawful.  Such right of indemnification shall 

not be deemed exclusive of any other right, or rights, to which the Director or 

Officer may be entitled under By-laws, agreement or otherwise. 

 

(3) Right to Reimburse Witness 

Nothing in this section shall limit the Corporation’s power to pay or reimburse 

expenses incurred by a Director or Officer in connection with his appearance as 

a witness in proceeding when he has not been named a defendant or respondent 

in the proceeding. 



 

14 
 

 

 

ARTICLE XI 

Dissolution 

(1) Dissolution 

 Upon the dissolution of the Corporation’s affairs, or upon the abandonment of the 

Corporation’s activities due to its impracticable or inexpedient nature, all of the 

assets of the Corporation then remaining in the hands or possession of the 

Corporation shall be distributed, transferred, conveyed, delivered and paid over 

as follows: 

a. Every liability and obligation of the Corporation shall be paid and 

discharged or adequate provision of payment and discharge shall be 

made. 

b. Assets held by the Corporation subject to legally valid requirements for 

their return, transfer, or conveyance on dissolution or forfeiture shall be 

disposed of in accordance with these requirements. 

 

 

ARTICLE XII 

Miscellaneous Provisions 

(1) Principal Office 

a. The principal office of the Corporation shall be located at (TBD) ,Bastrop, 

Texas. 

b. The Corporation shall have and shall continually designate a registered 

agent at its Registered Office, as required by the Act. 

 

(2) Surety Bonds 

The chair, vice-chair, and treasurer of the Board shall be given an official 

bond in the sum of not less than One Hundred Thousand and no/100 Dollars 

($100,000). The bonds referred to in this section shall be considered for the 

faithful accounting of all monies and things of value coming into the hands of 

such officers. The bonds shall be procured from some regularly accredited 

surety company authorized to do business in the State. The premiums shall 

be paid by the Corporation. A copy of each officer’s bond shall be filed with 

the Secretary of State.  



 

15 
 

 

(3) Legal Construction 

These Bylaws shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 

Texas.  

ARTICLE XIII 

Effective Date and Approval 

(1) Effective Date 

These Bylaws shall become effective upon the occurrence of the following 

events: 

a. the adoption of these Bylaws by the Board 

 

 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 

I hereby certify that these bylaws were adopted by the Board of Directors of BASTROP 
TX DESTINATION MARKETING ORGANIZATION, INC. at its meeting held on 
_______________. 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Chair 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Vice Chair 
 
___________________________________ 
 

     Secretary 
 
 
 
 



Overview of Significant Components of 

City’s Contract with Visit Bastrop

Item 2A – June 14, 2018 Joint Workshop



Council’s Purpose of Visit Bastrop

• Provide “brand” marketing for Bastrop as a destination, 

• To serve as the primary brand advocate, and 

• To better utilize existing facilities.



Council’s Requirements of Visit Bastrop

• Provide “global” oversight of Bastrop’s visitor assets and 

activities to provide a level of unity and representation to 

maximize Bastrop’s brand potential.

• Ensure each “community asset” is represented in a way that 

there is equal representation and seek input from each 

“community asset” group.



Council’s Broad Definition of Community Assets

• Arts

• History

• Hotels

• Restaurants

• Retail

• Sports

• Outdoors

• Recreation

• Hyatt

• Nightlife

• Entertainment

• Film



Contract Scope of Services

• Attract leisure visitors to the City and its vicinity,

• Attract and secure meetings, events, retreats, and conventions 

to the City and its vicinity,

• Serve as a liaison to local businesses (including hoteliers, 

restauranteurs, and other similar entities).



Contract Scope of Services

• Create annual Business Plan to achieve scope of services

• Utilize research reports on economic trends, growth sectors, 

and regional competitive strengths and weaknesses, as is 

customary in DMO industry, as specified in Business Plan,

• Provide marketing and imaging campaigns for City’s tourism 

and convention industry, as specified in Business Plan,



Contract Scope of Services

• Inform and partner with the City regarding high-profile or 

significant recruitment/attraction efforts,

• Provide in appropriate detail reports listing Visit Bastrop’s 

expenditures made with HOT, and Visit Bastrop’s progress in 

performing services in implementation of business plan,



Contract Scope of Services

• Provide expertise in destination management in conjunction 

with City of Bastrop to leverage available resources such as 

community assets and activities to maximize opportunities to 

attract visitors to Bastrop, both leisure and business, 

recognizing the critical role tourism plays in Bastrop’s 

economy, both in HOT and sales tax revenue.



Visit Bastrop Business Plan

• Shall prepare a business plan and proposed budget, in 

appropriate detail, how funding provided by City will be spent 

by September 1
st
. 

• Shall be presented publicly at 2
nd

Council meeting in 

September.

• Incorporates into City Contract upon approval by VB Board.



Visit Bastrop Business Plan

• Shall establish “performance targets” to evaluate 

performance of the business plan.

• Shall include “revenue enhancements” – potential funding 

sources of additional non-HOT revenues. 



Visit Bastrop Reporting Requirements

• Provide in appropriate detail its progress in implementing 

business plan including monthly and annual written reports 

similar to Albuquerque, NM report – Exhibit C of contract,

• Monthly presentations at a regularly scheduled council 

meeting that address contract scope of service,



Visit Bastrop Reporting Requirements

• Maintain reasonable levels of communication with City 

Manager, Finance Department, and other designated 

departments to ensure coordination of Visit Bastrop’s efforts 

to implement business plan. 



Visit Bastrop Reporting Requirements

• Participate in annual workshop between City Council and Visit 

Bastrop Board of Directors to have opportunity to dialog 

about performance, establish future goals and objectives, and 

other topics that may be relevant to the components of this 

contract in early June of each year.



Visit Bastrop Contract Term & Funding Agreement

• Five year term of October 1, 2017 – September 30, 2022.

• Receive 50% of the net HOT revenue collected, defined as HOT 

revenue minus the provision of payment satisfying the City’s 

debt secured by HOT.

• FY 2018 funding is $1,441,000. 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE:   June 14, 2018       AGENDA ITEM: 2B 
 
TITLE:   
Hold discussion regarding FY 2018 Contract Performance, establish future goals and objectives 
for FY 2019 and beyond, provide update on current Visit Bastrop activities such as the hiring 
process for a new Executive Director, the Branding initiative, adoption of a Strategic Plan, and 
other organizational items. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
Dale Lockett, Visit Bastrop President & CEO 
 
ATTACHMENT: 

• PowerPoint Presentation 
   
 
 



1

City of Bastrop – City Council

Visit Bastrop – Board of Directors

Joint Work Session

June 14, 2018

Item 2B 



2

To begin the process of delivering 2.2 A-F Scope of Services, Visit Bastrop had to become 
organizationally built and structured which involved the following efforts:

During the first two months, an organizational structure was put in place to set direction 
and manage business operations. 

• Incorporated Visit Bastrop and established not-for-profit status
• Converted “start-up Board” to full Board of Directors representing contractually 

required industry segments
• Adopted Vision and Mission, developed the FY 2018 Sales and Marketing Business Plan
• Submitted first annual budget to the Board for approval
• Hired staff and set up offices

Visit Bastrop performance regarding II. Scope of Services, Destination and Marketing Services 
Agreement Between the City of Bastrop, Texas and Visit Bastrop.



3

Visit Bastrop performance regarding II. Scope of Services, Destination and Marketing Services 
Agreement Between the City of Bastrop, Texas and Visit Bastrop. (continued)

• Hired CFO by Design to handle finances and set policies, procedures and 
controls

• Formed Board subcommittees – Executive Committee, Finance Committee, 
Board Nominating Committee and Marketing Committee

• Opened bank account along with bill payment processing system
• Secured visitbastrop.com URL
• Hired a third-party developer (Simpleview) to develop a robust visitor-centric 

website with calendar of events ranking high on search engines along with 
support for stakeholders and sales efforts

• Re-established relationship with Proof Advertising to obtain ownership of all 
previous Bastrop Marketing Corporation assets and focus Proof on development 
of advertising campaigns for upcoming selected events



4

Soon after formation, the City of Bastrop and the DMO Board adopted documents 
relevant to the structure of the organization. These documents outlined the terms and 
responsibilities between the DMO and the City of Bastrop, board composition, strategic 
planning and marketing objectives, among others. 
• Destination and Marketing Services Agreement between the City of Bastrop, Texas and 

Visit Bastrop
• Agreement for Provision of Administrative and Shared Services between the City of 

Bastrop and the Bastrop Destination Marketing Organization
• Bylaws of Bastrop TX Destination Marketing Organization, Inc. a Texas Nonprofit 

Corporation
• Started development of a 2018 - 2020 Strategic Plan for the Board of Visit Bastrop, Inc. 

(currently delayed to enable new President to provide input)
• Sales and Marketing Business Plan – FY 2018

Visit Bastrop performance regarding II. Scope of Services, Destination and Marketing Services 
Agreement Between the City of Bastrop, Texas and Visit Bastrop. (continued)



5

2.2 A-F Scope of Services Overview

The first year has been focused on setting baselines for our marketing efforts. Upon formation 
and staffing up, the DMO immediately began marketing upcoming events and building an 
inventory of photography and data to support ongoing promotions. The DMO also built its online 
presence. The following activities and efforts impact our contracted Scope of Services 
A-F deliverables:

• Heroes and Hotrods Car Show – promoted event with billboards, print ads in AAA Texas 
Magazine and Texas Highways Magazine, and targeted radio, which helped drive the highest 
number of vehicle exhibitors on record and the best ever weekend traffic to the downtown 
restaurants.

• Lost Pines Christmas Celebration – promoted event with billboards, television coverage on 
KVUE’s “My Hometown” feature, including an on-site interview with the Mayor & live 
broadcast from Hyatt Regency Lost Pines, and live social media feeds, supporting a 22% 
increase in hotel occupancy in December.

Visit Bastrop performance regarding II. Scope of Services, Destination and Marketing Services 
Agreement Between the City of Bastrop, Texas and Visit Bastrop. (continued)



6

• Downtown Ugly Sweater Pub Crawl/Downtown Cookie Crawl – promoted events with social 
media coverage

• Small Business Revolution – created significant social media presence, supported the 
movement and watched for trends. Promoted with paid social media exposure and 
activated partners to get the message out.

• Tough Mudder – partnered with Bastrop County to promote the destination to over 8,000 
participants and spectators. We also had a presence on the Tough Mudder web site, 
including promotion of Bastrop hotels, along with a two-page overview of the destination 
highlighting outdoor activities, shopping, dining, and special deals for race participants. Staff 
supported these efforts on site throughout the event. 

• Travel and Tourism Week – partnered with Bastrop County to host a celebration of National 
Travel and Tourism Week at the Opera House on May 10. 

Visit Bastrop performance regarding II. Scope of Services, Destination and Marketing Services 
Agreement Between the City of Bastrop, Texas and Visit Bastrop.

2.2 A-F Scope of Services (continued)



7

Visit Bastrop performance regarding II. Scope of Services, Destination and Marketing Services 
Agreement Between the City of Bastrop, Texas and Visit Bastrop.

2-2 A-F Scope of Services (continued) 

• Bastrop Music Festival – partnered with Texas Music Magazine to produce the first music 
festival; planned promotions and ad buys for the May 2018 event. Promoted the inaugural 
event through billboards, radio, gas pump ads, postcards, print ads in San Antonio Magazine, 
Austin Monthly Magazine, and Texas Music Magazine, along with signs, banners, social media 
exposure, press releases/media advisories, mass communications, and general word of 
mouth. Signs and banners placed along Main Street and Chestnut, as well as at the Chamber 
of Commerce, Museum and Visitor’s Center and ABRI Gallery helped raise local awareness of 
the event. The DMO marketing manager launched a successful ticket giveaway contest on 
social media that generated interest and increased awareness. Promotional efforts were 
lined up to run in-sync with Texas Music Magazine’s promotion of the festival, with a large 
push in the month leading up to the event. Staff provided support on site during the music 
festival.



8

Visit Bastrop performance regarding II. Scope of Services, Destination and Marketing Services 
Agreement Between the City of Bastrop, Texas and Visit Bastrop.

2-2 A-F Scope of Services (continued) 

• Patriotic Festival – partnered with the Chamber of Commerce and promoted the 
event through billboards, gas pump ads, social media exposure, press releases, and 
mass communication.

• Networking - attended training and networking events such as TTIA and TACVB to 
establish an identity in the industry as the new DMO for Bastrop.

• Visitor’s Center – meet and greet with volunteers, web site extranet, and visitor data 
collection

• Retailer Meetings – met with downtown merchants to discuss business trends and 
customer traffic

• Chamber of Commerce – represented the DMO at monthly lunch meetings
• BEST Breakfast – represented the Bastrop and the DMO at monthly meetings



9

• Community Partners Monthly Meetings – represent the DMO with BISD, BEDC, Main Street, 
City, Chamber, Convention Center, Visitor Center and Museum

• BEDC Coffee Chats – represent the destination and support BEDC efforts
• Convention Sales – initiated efforts to generate leads for events at the convention center 

and support meeting bookings at the Hyatt and other locations. Year-to-date, we have 
booked 1,044 room nights at the Hyatt (mainly assist bookings) and 330 room nights in our 
other hotels with no room nights generated from the convention center.  The entire concept 
of convention sales is currently being reviewed.  Tradeshow sales activities include:

• Christian Meetings Annual Showcase
• Religious Conference Managers Association
• PCMA Convening Leaders Conference
• Southwest Showcase
• Connect Texas

Visit Bastrop performance regarding II. Scope of Services, Destination and Marketing Services 
Agreement Between the City of Bastrop, Texas and Visit Bastrop.

2-2 A-F Scope of Services (continued) 



10

• Social Media --the DMO’s social media presence surged in January and all platforms 
continue to gain followers. The web site is performing above the industry average in 
engagement and continues to see a steady increase in organic traffic

• Website – We’ve has 23,101 visits to our website. 225 of visitors were returning, 78% 
were new. A Total of 56,878 pageviews have occurred on the website. Mobile is the 
most popular medium by which users access our site, 54% of all sessions. Desktop 
accounts for 39% and 7 % on tablets. 

• Facebook – 44,551 fans currently
• Instagram – increase in followers to 487
• Twitter – increase in followers to 550

Visit Bastrop performance regarding II. Scope of Services, Destination and Marketing Services 
Agreement Between the City of Bastrop, Texas and Visit Bastrop.

2-2 A-F Scope of Services (continued) 



11

General Promotions 
• Promoted outdoor recreation and other River experiences that are accessible just off 

Main Street as a unique destination offering
• Promoted local golf courses and other recreational assets in the community such as Lost 

Pines State Park, Bastrop Lake, Zip Lost Pines, Pine Forest Golf Club, Hero Water Sports, 
McKinney Roughs

• Promoted Hyatt Regency Lost Pines Resort identity with Bastrop using their unique 
horseback riding, shooting, river activity, golf and spa opportunities 

• Visited Copper Shot Distillery “Pickin on the Porch” and took video for social media 
exposure

• Provided general promotion and social media coverage of Bastrop as a whole including 
our unique differentiator of Main Street and the Crossing

Visit Bastrop performance regarding II. Scope of Services, Destination and Marketing Services 
Agreement Between the City of Bastrop, Texas and Visit Bastrop.

2-2 A-F Scope of Services (continued) 



12

• The FY 2018 Business Plan was developed by the staff and Board of Directors and was 
presented and approved by Council as required by the dates specified.  This document 
provides the guidance to Visit Bastrop staff regarding sales and marketing objectives and 
establishing a first-year baseline for deliverables in future years

• Business Plan Performance targets, including revenue enhancement plans, will be 
developed for the FY 2019 Business Plan

• Visit Bastrop provides a monthly status report to City Council and meets all other 
reporting requirements

2.4 Utilization of City-Owned Facilities – Visit Bastrop appreciates the ability to utilize City-
owned facilities and the overall cooperation of the City regarding special events and 
activities.

2.5 Board of Directors – Visit Bastrop is in compliance

2.6 Accreditation – this is a four-year effort that will begin in Fiscal year 2019.

2.3 A – C Business Plan 



13

October 1, 2018 will kick off Visit Bastrop’s second fiscal year and will wrap up the first full year 
of operations. As we move forward to the next level of activity, staff will be working on key 
projects, continuing marketing baseline efforts set during the first year, and fulfilling ongoing 
requirements as identified in the agreement with the City.
• Destination Brand – the DMO’s brand will be established and staff will be rolling it out as 

part of our promotions for the new year 
• Strategic Plan – staff will work with the Board to map out a revised strategic plan including 

feedback received in the first year of operations
• HOT Funding Restructure – implement a process to screen applicants for HOT funding 

support per requirements outlined by the City
• Hospitality Training – share cost of online customer service training with BEDC through 

Cygnet Strategies platform
• Advertising Agency – send out an RFP for professional design and advertising services for 

the new fiscal year
• Business Plan – staff will present the revised Sales and Marketing Business Plan for delivery 

of services for the new fiscal year with performance targets for execution of the plan

Forecast FY 2018 - 2019



14

• Budget – the new fiscal year budget as adopted in September will be underway
• Event Promotion – continue promoting known events, while seeking opportunities to 

develop new events to enhance the draw for visitors
• Leisure Marketing – continue leisure marketing efforts with advertising, digital and social 

media promotions, visitors guide and print collateral, and general public relations to 
elevate Bastrop and the vicinity as a desirable destination

• Meetings and Conventions – goal is to have finished evaluation of Visit Bastrop’s efforts in 
this segment and to have a decision made that is agreeable to the City regarding meeting 
sales efforts

• Trends and Research – maintain an awareness of economic trends, growth sectors, and 
regional competitive strengths and weaknesses to support strategic decisions to attract 
leisure visitors, meetings, events, retreats and conventions

• Business and Government Liaison – explore methods to interact with local businesses and 
City departments to get feedback for better communications and partnerships

• Forecasting – assist in producing the five-year forecast and adopted budget appropriation 
for HOT revenue

Forecast FY 2018 - 2019



15



16



17



18



19



20

Timeline/ Flowchart 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE:   June 14, 2018       AGENDA ITEM: 2C 
 
TITLE:   
Receive Presentation on Visit Bastrop Monthly Report - "HOT Report 101" to educate the Council 
on the elements of the monthly report. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Dale Lockett, Visit Bastrop President & CEO 
 
ATTACHMENT: 

• PowerPoint Presentation 
   
 
 



Visit Bastrop

President’s Report

April 2018

1



Lodging Industry Report

March ’18 Calendar Year to Date

Occ %CH Occ ADR % Ch 

ADR

% CH 

RevPAR

% CH 

Rooms 

Sold
Occ

% Change from YTD 2017

%CH 

Occ

ADR % Ch 

ADR

% CH 

RevPAR

% CH Rooms 

Sold

Bastrop 69.2 -1.6 100.11 -2.0 -3.6 -1.6 55.1 6.5 87.94 -1.2 5.2 6.5

1 65.0 -3.1 93.45 .5 -2.6 7.9 53.3 -0.3 87.35 6.0 5.7 11.1

2 65.3 -1.8 85.94 3.4 1.5 -1.8 52.3 -5.8 80.35 2.2 -3.7 -5.8

3 69.1 2.0 120.08 4.4 6.4 2.5 55.6 6.5 104.60 0.9 7.4 7.0

4 71.5 4.3 119.36 .4 4.7 4.3 57.1 5.3 107.05 0.1 5.5 5.3

5 67.7 0.4 100.68 .4 .7 9.6 51.7 -5.0 93.13 -1.8 -6.7 3.7

6 79.3 1.1 141.37 8.2 9.3 2.7 66.8 -1.4 124.94 5.4 4.0 0.0

7 80.6 -5.0 191.70 -1.0 -5.9 2.3 73.7 -2.6 163.32 -0.1 -2.7 2.6

8 80.4 -3.0 154.75 -4.4 -7.3 6.3 71.2 -3.0 130.41 -5.0 -7.9 7.1

9 61.1 -5.8 96.87 .2 -5.6 10.7 54.7 -4.8 95.08 0.6 -4.2 13.2

Average 64.0 -1.25 120.43 1.01 -0.24 4.29 59.15 0.46 107.42 .71 .26 5.07
2

This is hotel industry jargon meaning 
Revenue Per Available Room which is an 

indicator of profitability for hotels

This is the primary indicator of increase or 
decrease of overnight visitors



4.7 3.8

21.6

15.6
14.1

-1.6

-20

(30)

(20)

(10)

0 

10 

20 

30 

Oct '17 Nov '17 Dec '17 Jan '18 Feb '18 Mar '18 Apr '18 May '18 Jun '18 Jul '18 Aug '18 Sep '18

%

Hotel Occupancy Monthly Percent Change
Year Over Year 

Year 1 3



Convention Sales

Room Nights Booked- Fiscal Year to Date

Convention Center Hyatt Other Total

FYTD Room Nights 1044 330 1374

Lead Production - April

Number of Leads Sent Total Room Night Potential Total Attendance

1 20 100

*Per city contract, Direct Spending is calculated using the DMAI Event Impact Calculator

Definite Future Room Night Bookings– April

Number of Definite Bookings Total Room Night Production Total Attendance Economic Impact*

Originated 1 22 100 $5,408

Assisted

4



Convention Sales Initiatives

Tradeshow/Industry Meetings:
•April 12 Global Meetings Industry Day- Austin

Local Events Attended:
•April 4 Chamber Luncheon

Meetings/Appointments:
•April 10 Social Tables event design training with Steve Ballard (BCEC)
•April 16 Joint meeting with Explore Bastrop County in preparation for Tough Mudder & NTTW

Prospecting/Research:
• Added 14 new event accounts into database with contacts, meeting profiles, and other relevant 

information for sales calls.
• Spoke with 1 association and 1 religious planner regarding future site visits to Bastrop

Other:
•April 2-5 Out of Office for FEMA ICS 300 & ICS 400 Training
•April 20-30 Out of Office for personal leave

5



Website

April Website Overview

MARKETING 

6

Terms Defined: 
• User: the number of new and returning people who visit your site 

during a set period of time. 
• New User: a user who visits your website for the first time
• Sessions: a single visit to your website.
• Number of Sessions/per user: total number of sessions divided by 

total number of users. Used to measure customer loyalty. 
• Pageviews: when a page has been viewed by a user on your 

website.
• Pageviews per session: provides insight into how effective site 

content is keeping viewers engaged.   
• Average Session Duration: provides a top level view of how long 

users are spending on your site. 
• Bounce Rate: the percentage of sessions with a single pageview. 

This metric provides top-level insight about the performance of 
your content.



Organic Traffic Overview: In April 2018, VisitBastrop.com, had 2,192 organic sessions. This 
accounted for 62% of the total sessions. Our site is continuing to see steady increase in organic 
traffic each month. In December, the first full month of our live site, organic sessions made up 18% 
of our traffic. In April, the site had its largest volume of traffic – in addition – our keyword rankings 
are improving. All of this indicates that the website is gaining visibility in search results. 

• Homepage 
• Bastrop Music Festival 
• Easter Celebration at Hyatt Regency Lost Pines 

Your top organic landing page last month was the homepage. Additional top organic landing pages 
included the event listing for the Bastrop Music Festival and the events calendar. 
*In regards to engagement metrics, visitbastrop.com is performing better than the industry 
average in all measured areas. Our audience is visiting more pages, spending more time on the 
site, and bouncing less often than other DMO audiences.  

April Website Overview

7

Organic Traffic: the bread and butter of search 
engine optimization (SEO), organic traffic is any 
traffic that lands on your website by searching a 
keyword or phrase on a search engine, then 
clicking on a link that runs back to the website.

Other types of website traffic: 

Direct Traffic: internet users who land on website 
by directly inputting URL into browser. 
Paid Traffic: internet users who are referred to our 
site by paid advertising. 
Social Media Traffic: comes from our presence on 
any social media channels.
Referral Traffic: measured by users who land on 
our website via external links clicked from other 
websites. 



April Website Overview

8

Month to Month Overview (6 Month): 

visitbastrop.com has experienced 
great success in gaining organic 

visibility and engaging our audience. 
Website engagement stats are 

performing above industry standards.

Bounce rate 
Industry Average | 55%
visitbastrop.com | 44% 

Average Page per Session 
Industry average | 2.16 
Visitbastrop.com | 2.53 

Average Session Duration
Industry Average | 1.56
visitbastrop.com | 2.21 

This means that users are exploring 
more pages than just the one which 

they landed. 



April Website Overview

9

Search engines being used for queries

What people are searching and the 
number of times visitbastrop.com 
appeared in the search results 
(impressions).

Top TEN Landing Pages being viewed by website 
users 



April Website Overview

10



Facebook Overview: April

11



Facebook Overview: April

12



Instagram Overview: April

13



Strategic Marketing Initiatives

Bastrop Music Festival: Within one month of the festival, the majority of Visit Bastrop marketing efforts are underway. 
Billboards have been secured East and West of town. We’ve partnered with a third party company to promote the 
festival to travelers via gas pump toppers at gas stations in the surrounding areas. We’re running a social promotion on 
Facebook and Instagram giving away tickets to the festival to generate buzz, and create awareness.  We’ve also partnered 
with Texas monthly to promote the festival as well as Sun Radio, who will promote via their radio stations. We have 
created a local presence using the downtown corridor to hang signage at City Hall, displayed multiple banners and 
signage along Main Street, including the ABRI Gallery window and Chamber of Commerce as well as handing out 
postcards to business owners, and posting at various places around town. 

Bastrop Patriotic Fest: (June 29 – 30) marketing drivers: fireworks, sky divers, family fun. Overall goal for this festival is to 
build awareness and interest, ideally encouraging overnight stays and spending at the local level among target audience. 
Billboards secured for the music festival will be repurposed for this event and they will run from 6/4 – 7/2. Creative to-be 
finalized in the coming days.  Third party company secured to promote festival to travelers to our area via gas pump 
toppers at gas stations. Working closely with Chamber and agency on design elements and audience targeting. 

14



Marketing Meetings/Activities

15

DATE ACTIVITY/MEETING PURPOSE

4/3 Chamber Monthly Luncheon Chamber/city updates; networking 

4/9 Media Recommendations/Creative – Meetings To effectively promote Bastrop as a meeting destination 

4/9 Simpleview Monthly SEO Call To discuss and improve SEO 

4/11 Meet with Co. Tourism office - Tough Mudder/Tourism Week Brainstorming Meeting for Event

4/11 CRM Training Sending Mass Emails to partners; troubleshooting 

4/17 Meet with Chamber – Patriotic Festival Planning Discussion Learn confirmed details, received assets, brainstorm ideas

4/17 Monthly CRM Support Call Troubleshoot difficulties navigating the CRM

4/20 Breakfast Bites with Sheila Scarborough The Marketing Layer Cake

4/23 Deluxe Small Business Seminar How to successfully market your small business

4/26 Call with Stackla (support) Social Media/Website integration tool troubleshooting



Communications Initiatives

16

Date Activities Purpose

4/2/18 - 4/6/18 Review Documents Relevant to DMO Formation Familiarization 

4/2/18 - 4/6/18 Review Strategic Plan Familiarization 

4/5/2018 Marketing Committee Meeting Branding Kick-off Meeting

4/11/2018 Tough Mudder/Tourism Week Planning Meeting Initial Meeting - Event Planning

4/16/2018 Tough Mudder/Tourism Week Planning Meeting Follow-up Meeting - Event Planning

4/17/2018 Patriotic Festival Planning Meeting Initial Meeting - Event Planning

Date Events Attended Purpose

4/4/2018 Chamber Luncheon Networking; Current City Updates

4/6/2018 First Friday Art Walk Visited Event; Took Photos

4/12/2018 Global Meetings Industry Day - Austin Panelist of Speakers; Networking with Meeting Planners

4/20/2018 Breakfast Bites Meeting Social Media Speaker

4/23/2018 Deluxe Small Business Seminar Local Business Attendance; Small Business Consultants Presenting

4/27/2018 BEST Breakfast Meeting Represent Visit Bastrop

4/29/2018 Table on Main - Volunteer Clean-up After Local Event



Communications Initiatives

17

Date Media Initiatives Purpose

4/06/2018 Press Release - Music Festival Area Media - Promote Local Awareness of Music Festival

4/17/2018 Texas Monthly Storytelling Content Visual Storytelling Opportunity - Music Festival, Overall Bastrop

4/18/2018 Texas Monthly Travel Planner I Music Festival promotion

4/19/2018 Media Advisory - Tourism Week Alert to Area Media - Travel/Tourism Week

4/24/2018 Mass Communication Tough Mudder Awareness 

4/24/2018 Texas Monthly Travel Planner II Music Festival plus downtown promotion

4/25/2018 Event Post - Austin 360 Promote Music Festival

4/26/2018 Event Post - 365 Austin Promote Music Festival

4/26/2018 Event Post - Spectrum Local News Promote Music Festival

4/26/2018 Event Post - Austin Monthly Promote Music Festival

4/26/2018 Event Post - Austin Social Planner Promote Music Festival

4/27/2018 Event Post - Visit Austin Promote Music Festival

4/27/2018 Event Post - Austin.com Promote Music Festival

4/27/2018 Event Post - Austinot Promote Music Festival

4/27/2018 Event Post - Houston Press Promote Music Festival

4/27/2018 Event Post - Houstonia Promote Music Festival

4/27/2018 Event Post - Click2Houston Promote Music Festival

4/30/2018 Event Post - CultureMap Austin Promote Music Festival



Marketing Efforts – Veteran’s Day Car Show
Partner – Bastrop Area Cruisers 

• Objective: Promote travel to the Bastrop Veteran’s 
Day Celebration 

• Target Audience: Texas Travelers & Car Enthusiasts 

• How are we reaching them: Print, Audio, Digital, 
Billboard & Social 

Regional Placement: 

• AAA Texas Journey & Texas Highways Magazine 



Marketing Efforts – Veteran’s Day Car Show
Partner – Bastrop Area Cruisers 



Marketing Efforts – Lost Pines Christmas 
Partner – Downtown Bastrop & City of Bastrop

• Objective: Support Bastrop’s Christmas Celebration with digital promotion to drive awareness of events 
happening in Bastrop

• Target Audience: Family Audience with interests in food, art and history 

• “My Hometown” partnership with CBS Austin live broadcast interviews with Mayor Schroeder from Hyatt 
Regency Lost Pines highlighting Bastrop as a destination and the Lost Pines Christmas celebration 





Bastrop Music Festival, May 17 – 20, 2018 



Bastrop Music Festival Marketing Overview
Partner – TX Music Magazine 

Media Objective: 

Build awareness into inaugural event ideally encouraging 
overnight stay and spending at the local level amongst target 
audience 

KPI/Measure: 

Drive traffic to event pages to learn more and if applicable, 
purchase tickets.







Marketing Efforts – Bastrop Patriotic Fest
Partner – Bastrop Chamber of Commerce, City of Bastrop, Texas Monthly

• Objective: Build awareness into yearly 
summertime event ideally encouraging overnight 

stay and spending at the local level amongst 
target audience 

• Target Audience: Family Audience with 
interests in food, art and history

• How are we reaching them: Outdoor, Digital, 
Social Media 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE:  June 14, 2018      AGENDA ITEM: 2D 
 
TITLE: 
Receive monthly report from Visit Bastrop. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Sarah O’Brien, Hospitality & Downtown Department Director 
Dale Lockett, Visit Bastrop President & CEO 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
Per the management agreement with Visit Bastrop, a monthly presentation must be made to the 
City Council outlining its progress in implementing their annual Business Plan and meeting 
performance targets and the scope of services pursuant to that agreement. 
 
Specifically Visit Bastrop shall work to:  

(1) attract leisure visitors to the City and its vicinity;  
(2) attract and secure meetings, events, retreats, and conventions to the City and its 

vicinity; and  
(3) serve as a liaison to local businesses (including hoteliers, restaurateurs, and other 

similar entities) and City departments to attract leisure and business visitors, meetings, 
events, retreats, and conventions to the City and its vicinity.  

 
Visit Bastrop, shall also:  

(A) carry out the actions defined in the applicable annual Business Plan;  
(B) utilize research reports on economic trends, growth sectors, and regional competitive 

strengths and weaknesses, as is customary in the destination and marketing 
organization industry;  

(C) provide marketing and imaging campaigns for the City's tourism and convention 
industry;  

(D) inform and partner with the City regarding high-profile or significant 
recruitment/attraction efforts;  

(E) provide, in appropriate detail in accordance with the Tax Code, reports listing the Visit 
Bastrop's expenditures made with HOT, and Visit Bastrop's progress in performing the 
Services in conformance with implementation of the annual Business Plan; and 

(F) Provide expertise in destination management in conjunction with the City of Bastrop to 
leverage available resources such as community assets and activities to maximize 
opportunities to attract visitors to Bastrop, both leisure and business, recognizing the 
critical role tourism plays in Bastrop's economy, both in HOT and sales tax revenue. 

 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Visit Bastrop, a 501(c)6 organization, was engaged to provide Destination Marketing Services 
and provide brand marketing for Bastrop as a destination.  
 



 

As outlined in the annual management agreement, the City and Visit Bastrop recognize the visitor 
industry as a key economic generator. Visit Bastrop’s purpose is to provide “brand” marketing for 
Bastrop as a destination and to serve as the primary brand advocate. Visit Bastrop will also 
leverage utilization of existing facilities, while providing global oversight of Bastrop’s visitor assets 
and activities. Visit Bastrop will also provide a level of unity and representation to maximize 
Bastrop’s brand potential.  
 
The Visit Bastrop Board of Directors meets monthly on the third Thursday at 8:30 a.m. and rotates 
meeting locations at different hospitality venues.  
 
City Council established that the Visit Bastrop Board of Directors include broad representation of 
community assets and identified those as Arts, History, Hotels, Restaurants, Sports, Outdoors, 
Recreation, Hyatt, Nightlife, Entertainment and Film in the Destination Services Management 
Agreement. 
 
The City Council and Visit Bastrop Board of Directors will host a joint workshop on Thursday, 
June 14th in the City Council Chambers at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Per their management agreement, Visit Bastrop must present an approved business plan and 
annual budget to the City Council no later than September 1, 2018 for FY 2019. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
Visit Bastrop receives approximately $1.4 million dollars in Hotel Occupancy Tax annually from 
the City of Bastrop to provide destination marketing services and serve as the brand advocate for 
our community.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Provide any direction or feedback to Visit Bastrop staff and their Board of Directors on the 
organization’s progress in meeting the annual requirements outlined in the management 
agreement.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• President’s Report 
 



Visit Bastrop

President’s Report

April 2018

1



Lodging Industry Report

March ’18 Calendar Year to Date

Occ %CH Occ ADR % Ch 

ADR

% CH 

RevPAR

% CH 

Rooms 

Sold
Occ

% Change from YTD 2017

%CH 

Occ

ADR % Ch 

ADR

% CH 

RevPAR

% CH Rooms 

Sold

Bastrop 69.2 -1.6 100.11 -2.0 -3.6 -1.6 55.1 6.5 87.94 -1.2 5.2 6.5

1 65.0 -3.1 93.45 .5 -2.6 7.9 53.3 -0.3 87.35 6.0 5.7 11.1

2 65.3 -1.8 85.94 3.4 1.5 -1.8 52.3 -5.8 80.35 2.2 -3.7 -5.8

3 69.1 2.0 120.08 4.4 6.4 2.5 55.6 6.5 104.60 0.9 7.4 7.0

4 71.5 4.3 119.36 .4 4.7 4.3 57.1 5.3 107.05 0.1 5.5 5.3

5 67.7 0.4 100.68 .4 .7 9.6 51.7 -5.0 93.13 -1.8 -6.7 3.7

6 79.3 1.1 141.37 8.2 9.3 2.7 66.8 -1.4 124.94 5.4 4.0 0.0

7 80.6 -5.0 191.70 -1.0 -5.9 2.3 73.7 -2.6 163.32 -0.1 -2.7 2.6

8 80.4 -3.0 154.75 -4.4 -7.3 6.3 71.2 -3.0 130.41 -5.0 -7.9 7.1

9 61.1 -5.8 96.87 .2 -5.6 10.7 54.7 -4.8 95.08 0.6 -4.2 13.2

Average 64.0 -1.25 120.43 1.01 -0.24 4.29 59.15 0.46 107.42 .71 .26 5.07
2



4.7 3.8

21.6

15.6
14.1

-1.6

-20

(30)

(20)

(10)

0 

10 

20 

30 

Oct '17 Nov '17 Dec '17 Jan '18 Feb '18 Mar '18 Apr '18 May '18 Jun '18 Jul '18 Aug '18 Sep '18

%

Hotel Occupancy Monthly Percent Change
Year Over Year 

Year 1 3



Convention Sales
Room Nights Booked- Fiscal Year to Date

Convention Center Hyatt Other Total

FYTD Room Nights 1044 330 1374

Lead Production - April

Number of Leads Sent Total Room Night Potential Total Attendance

1 20 100

*Per city contract, Direct Spending is calculated using the DMAI Event Impact Calculator

Definite Future Room Night Bookings– April

Number of Definite Bookings Total Room Night Production Total Attendance Economic Impact*

Originated 1 22 100 $5,408

Assisted

4



Convention Sales Initiatives

Tradeshow/Industry Meetings:
•April 12 Global Meetings Industry Day- Austin

Local Events Attended:
•April 4 Chamber Luncheon

Meetings/Appointments:
•April 10 Social Tables event design training with Steve Ballard (BCEC)
•April 16 Joint meeting with Explore Bastrop County in preparation for Tough Mudder & NTTW

Prospecting/Research:
• Added 14 new event accounts into database with contacts, meeting profiles, and other relevant 

information for sales calls.
• Spoke with 1 association and 1 religious planner regarding future site visits to Bastrop

Other:
•April 2-5 Out of Office for FEMA ICS 300 & ICS 400 Training
•April 20-30 Out of Office for personal leave

5



Website

April Website Overview

MARKETING 

6



Organic Traffic Overview: In April 2018, VisitBastrop.com, had 2,192 organic sessions. This 
accounted for 62% of the total sessions. Our site is continuing to see steady increase in organic 
traffic each month. In December, the first full month of our live site, organic sessions made up 18% 
of our traffic. In April, the site had its largest volume of traffic – in addition – our keyword rankings 
are improving. All of this indicates that the website is gaining visibility in search results. 

• Homepage 
• Bastrop Music Festival 
• Easter Celebration at Hyatt Regency Lost Pines 

Your top organic landing page last month was the homepage. Additional top organic landing pages 
included the event listing for the Bastrop Music Festival and the events calendar. 
*In regards to engagement metrics, visitbastrop.com is performing better than the industry 
average in all measured areas. Our audience is visiting more pages, spending more time on the 
site, and bouncing less often than other DMO audiences.  

April Website Overview

7



April Website Overview

8



April Website Overview

9



April Website Overview

10



Facebook Overview: April

11



Facebook Overview: April

12



Instagram Overview: April

13



Strategic Marketing Initiatives

Bastrop Music Festival: Within one month of the festival, the majority of Visit Bastrop marketing efforts are underway. 
Billboards have been secured East and West of town. We’ve partnered with a third party company to promote the 
festival to travelers via gas pump toppers at gas stations in the surrounding areas. We’re running a social promotion on 
Facebook and Instagram giving away tickets to the festival to generate buzz, and create awareness.  We’ve also partnered 
with Texas monthly to promote the festival as well as Sun Radio, who will promote via their radio stations. We have 
created a local presence using the downtown corridor to hang signage at City Hall, displayed multiple banners and 
signage along Main Street, including the ABRI Gallery window and Chamber of Commerce as well as handing out 
postcards to business owners, and posting at various places around town. 

Bastrop Patriotic Fest: (June 29 – 30) marketing drivers: fireworks, sky divers, family fun. Overall goal for this festival is to 
build awareness and interest, ideally encouraging overnight stays and spending at the local level among target audience. 
Billboards secured for the music festival will be repurposed for this event and they will run from 6/4 – 7/2. Creative to-be 
finalized in the coming days.  Third party company secured to promote festival to travelers to our area via gas pump 
toppers at gas stations. Working closely with Chamber and agency on design elements and audience targeting. 

14



Marketing Meetings/Activities

15

DATE ACTIVITY/MEETING PURPOSE

4/3 Chamber Monthly Luncheon Chamber/city updates; networking 

4/9 Media Recommendations/Creative – Meetings To effectively promote Bastrop as a meeting destination 

4/9 Simpleview Monthly SEO Call To discuss and improve SEO 

4/11 Meet with Co. Tourism office - Tough Mudder/Tourism Week Brainstorming Meeting for Event

4/11 CRM Training Sending Mass Emails to partners; troubleshooting 

4/17 Meet with Chamber – Patriotic Festival Planning Discussion Learn confirmed details, received assets, brainstorm ideas

4/17 Monthly CRM Support Call Troubleshoot difficulties navigating the CRM

4/20 Breakfast Bites with Sheila Scarborough The Marketing Layer Cake

4/23 Deluxe Small Business Seminar How to successfully market your small business

4/26 Call with Stackla (support) Social Media/Website integration tool troubleshooting



Communications Initiatives

16

Date Activities Purpose

4/2/18 - 4/6/18 Review Documents Relevant to DMO Formation Familiarization 

4/2/18 - 4/6/18 Review Strategic Plan Familiarization 

4/5/2018 Marketing Committee Meeting Branding Kick-off Meeting

4/11/2018 Tough Mudder/Tourism Week Planning Meeting Initial Meeting - Event Planning

4/16/2018 Tough Mudder/Tourism Week Planning Meeting Follow-up Meeting - Event Planning

4/17/2018 Patriotic Festival Planning Meeting Initial Meeting - Event Planning

Date Events Attended Purpose

4/4/2018 Chamber Luncheon Networking; Current City Updates

4/6/2018 First Friday Art Walk Visited Event; Took Photos

4/12/2018 Global Meetings Industry Day - Austin Panelist of Speakers; Networking with Meeting Planners

4/20/2018 Breakfast Bites Meeting Social Media Speaker

4/23/2018 Deluxe Small Business Seminar Local Business Attendance; Small Business Consultants Presenting

4/27/2018 BEST Breakfast Meeting Represent Visit Bastrop

4/29/2018 Table on Main - Volunteer Clean-up After Local Event



Communications Initiatives

17

Date Media Initiatives Purpose

4/06/2018 Press Release - Music Festival Area Media - Promote Local Awareness of Music Festival

4/17/2018 Texas Monthly Storytelling Content Visual Storytelling Opportunity - Music Festival, Overall Bastrop

4/18/2018 Texas Monthly Travel Planner I Music Festival promotion

4/19/2018 Media Advisory - Tourism Week Alert to Area Media - Travel/Tourism Week

4/24/2018 Mass Communication Tough Mudder Awareness 

4/24/2018 Texas Monthly Travel Planner II Music Festival plus downtown promotion

4/25/2018 Event Post - Austin 360 Promote Music Festival

4/26/2018 Event Post - 365 Austin Promote Music Festival

4/26/2018 Event Post - Spectrum Local News Promote Music Festival

4/26/2018 Event Post - Austin Monthly Promote Music Festival

4/26/2018 Event Post - Austin Social Planner Promote Music Festival

4/27/2018 Event Post - Visit Austin Promote Music Festival

4/27/2018 Event Post - Austin.com Promote Music Festival

4/27/2018 Event Post - Austinot Promote Music Festival

4/27/2018 Event Post - Houston Press Promote Music Festival

4/27/2018 Event Post - Houstonia Promote Music Festival

4/27/2018 Event Post - Click2Houston Promote Music Festival

4/30/2018 Event Post - CultureMap Austin Promote Music Festival



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE:  June 14, 2018      AGENDA ITEM:  2E 
 
TITLE: 
Discuss Essential Tourism Asset Policy & Special Events previously funded by City through HOT 
Funds. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Sarah O'Brien, Hospitality & Downtown Director 
Dale Lockett, Visit Bastrop President & CEO 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
Chapter 351 of the Tax Code provides the requirements on how HOT funds may be spent. As 
prioritized in the FY 18 Budget, staff has been working to leverage HOT funds to attract tourism 
and strengthen our sales tax base by maximizing our investment. Staff also continues to work to 
bring HOT fund users together under the strategic goals and vision that have been developed in 
line with the Council’s Focus Areas, the City’s 2018 Work Plan, and the Comprehensive Plan 
2036 as outlined below:  
 
2018 Focus Areas: 
Uniquely Bastrop: Maintain and enhance our historic community feel by leveraging the unique 
combination of community, cultural and recreational assets that make Bastrop a special place to 
live and work. 
Economic Vitality: Create sustainability by leveraging tourism, infrastructure renewal and 
investment; enhancing public/private partnerships; efficient planning and development processes; 
and fostering an inclusive and diverse environment that encourages entrepreneurial ventures. 
Fiscal Responsibility: Prepare and manage budget; fiduciary responsibility. 
 
2018 Work Plan Items: 
Economic Vitality # 9:  Continue ongoing development of the Bastrop visitor experience to include 
the community’s culinary and cultural assets. 
Fiscal Responsibility #9:  Redesign the Hotel Occupancy Fund Community Program Funding 
Policy & Application to better leverage resources and maximize the visitors’ experience. 
 
Comprehensive Plan 2036: 
Objective 8.1.3: Enhance the offerings available at the Bastrop Museum & Visitor Center. 

ACTION 1: Create a visitor’s feedback survey to better understand demand for other 
tourism activities. 
ACTION 2: Increase the number of digital and interactive exhibits and consider offering 
virtual video tours on-line, either for free or for purchase. 
ACTION 3: Use interactive media displays that allows people to choose how they interact 
with the museum and visitor center, as well as other locations downtown. 
ACTION 4: Increase presence on social media by posting content on-line at regular and 
predictable intervals. 



 

ACTION 5: Offer “flash” sales on social media. These are deals that come up periodically 
that are only available for a short time, typically a day or two. This will get people excited 
about the social media outlets and help to grow viewership. 

Objective 8.1.4: Create multiple downtown destination events that rely on Bastrop’s cultural 
assets.  

ACTION 1: Encourage visitors to downtown Bastrop with events that occur weekly, 
monthly, or annually. Lost Pines Christmas is a great example of this type of event 
ACTION 2: Create a “demo day” downtown that occurs each month. Entrepreneurs and 
local businesses can demo their products, foods, and services. 

 
The Comprehensive Plan also states that Bastrop’s continued emphasis on cultural arts and 
tourism development through coordinated policies will lead to hundreds of millions in economic 
activity for the region.  
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
The FY 18 budget emphasized Council’s desire to diversify our revenue sources and increase 
property tax valuations. A strategic focus on economic development to reduce the City’s 
dependence on sales tax was made a priority. Priority was given to leveraging the $2,875,000 in 
annual Hotel Occupancy receipts to maximize the City’s opportunity to attract tourism and to work 
towards becoming a AAA- 4 Diamond destination for Hyatt guests. Staff is proposing several 
changes to the current HOT Fund Funding Application process, which will expand on our efforts 
from the current budget cycle and continue our focus on improving the Bastrop tourism 
experience. The proposed changes are outlined below: 
 

A. In FY 18, several HOT funded events were identified as being better suited for an 
alternative funding source. These festivals may or may not attract tourists but share 
historical importance as long-standing community events. Staff is recommending that in 
FY 19 the annual Bastrop Homecoming & Rodeo funding request be allocated out of the 
Hospitality & Downtown budget through funding provided by Bastrop Power & Light. If 
approved, Homecoming would join Juneteenth and a portion of the Patriotic Festival under 
this umbrella.  All three (3) of these events are important to the City of Bastrop and would 
occur with or without HOT funds. Staff will continue to work with these event organizers to 
ensure they can define the value provided to the community through their annual funding 
allocation and require acknowledgement of BP&L as a sponsor on all marketing materials. 
Staff will develop a Community Event Request Form to provide transparency in the 
process.  

 
B. In FY 18, the City funded approximately $81,000 in special event funding through the HOT 

Funding Application process.  With the creation of Visit Bastrop, staff is recommending 
the allocation of an additional $75,000 to Visit Bastrop’s FY 19 budget for development of 
a Tourism Special Event Funding program and application process. The difference is 
funding is due to FY 18 funding given to convention organizers, typically these types of 
requests will be allocated out of an inducement fund in a DMO’s operating budget as they 
are not annual requests. Visit Bastrop staff is better equipped to track the economic impact 
and generation of hotel occupancy tax that may occur from events designed with the 
tourist in mind. Since Visit Bastrop is charged with marketing our community and telling 
the Bastrop Story, allowing them to work directly with event organizers to promote and 
market events should prove beneficial to event organizers and ultimately help maximize 
the City’s return on our investment of Hotel Occupancy Tax. Event organizers would work 
directly with Visit Bastrop staff to apply for event funding based on room night generation. 
Such a program would empower event organizers to demonstrate the value that their 



 

event provides the community. Visit Bastrop staff will utilize special event economic impact 
calculators specifically designed to track HOT and measure the economic impact that 
events provide to Bastrop. It should be noted that Visit Bastrop has already allocated a 
portion of their funding for events in their FY 18 budget, like marketing the Bastrop Music 
Festival. The Visit Bastrop Board of Directors will be able to contribute additional funding 
from their budget for events and conventions that are in line with the organization’s 
mission.  
 

C. Staff believes that certain tourism assets, that have previously participated in the HOT 
Funding Application process, are better suited to be classified as Essential Tourism Assets 
and would like to recommend the creation of an Essential Tourism Asset Funding Program 
for non-profits who rely annually on HOT funds. These assets are critical to the Bastrop 
tourism picture. While they may not be the sole reason a visitor makes a trip to Bastrop, 
when actively programmed and leveraged properly, these assets paint a culturally rich 
landscape encouraging tourists to extend their stay and spend additional dollars with us. 
Examples of essential tourism assets include the Bastrop County Museum & Visitor’s 
Center, Bastrop Opera House, and the Lost Pines Art Center. FY 18 was the first year that 
the Museum & Visitor’s Center’s contract was combined, since both visitor services and 
historic preservation are allowable under Chapter 351. The functions performed by the 
Bastrop County Historical Society should continue to be addressed in one funding 
agreement.   

 
 Over the last 12 months, with the creation of Visit Bastrop, the establishment of the City’s 

Hospitality & Downtown Department, and the development of our Cultural Arts Master 
Plan on the horizon, we are now uniquely positioned to leverage and work in tandem 
towards our community goals related to tourism. We can now effectively market and 
promote these assets and their programs as part of the overall Bastrop experience. The 
Essential Tourism Asset Funding program would establish a stable funding source for 
these assets to effectively plan for our shared vision.   

 
 While the FY 18 HOT Funding Application contracts established a variety of deliverables 

and expectations with users, this new program would further define these tourism assets’ 
roles in developing the Bastrop tourism picture. Staff would recommend incorporating the 
following deliverables into a funding agreement:   

a. Present 9-12 months’ worth of programs annually (January – December) designed 
to appeal to tourists and attract overnight visitation to City Council.  

i. All art work, images and details regarding the individual programs such as 
“performances,” “classes,” or “exhibits” for the contract period including 
ticket prices and purchasing methods. Specific program details must be 
received by Visit Bastrop through their online CRM system no later than 90 
days in advance, preferably 120 days in advance.  

ii. PR Opportunities to promote events should be provided directly to Visit 
Bastrop. 

iii. Maintain an active social media and online digital presence. 
b. Annual Marketing Plan 
c. Strategic Plan that addresses identifying additional funding sources 
d. Annual Operating Budget 
e. In partnership with Visit Bastrop, develop a visitor intercept survey to include data 

such as:  where the visitor is from, demographic data, social-economic data, how 
they discovered Bastrop (advertising, social media, word-of-mouth), lodging 
information, length of stay, size of party, primary attractor, intent to return. 



 

f. Monthly year-over-year traffic counts and primary market origin. 
g. Participate in customer service, destination, board development and/or Hotel 

Occupancy Tax Training as provided by the City or Visit Bastrop. 
h. Develop and maintain a building rental program and policies allowing opportunities 

for additional revenue streams and access to the facility to outside users. 
i. Actively participate in the Cultural Arts Master Plan development and 

implementation process that is yet to be identified.  
j. Follow all applicable local, state and federal laws related to building improvements 

and expenditures of HOT’ 
k. Other deliverables as currently defined in the FY 18 Funding Agreements specific 

to the assets roles in Bastrop’s tourism picture.  
 

All contracts would be for a multi-year period allowing the essential tourism assets to know how 
much funding will be available annually and allow for appropriate planning. Staff would 
recommend quarterly reporting requirements to City Council highlighting the assets’ upcoming 
quarter of events and reviewing the current quarter’s programs.  Quarterly reporting will heighten 
the sense of accountability of the allocated HOT funds.  Staff would present funding contracts in 
June for Council consideration for January – December programming in the following year.  This 
lapse in time will allow appropriate time for marketing.  Assets would be required annually to 
present proposed programming, marketing plans, and strategic plans to Council before funding 
would be allocated.   Funding would occur, according to the contract, once approval is given by 
Council. The deliverables of each contract will be reviewed annually to ensure prior year 
compliance before funding is allocated in years 2 or 3. If an essential tourism asset does not 
perform according to contract, the asset may not be eligible for funding the next year, depending 
upon the cause of default. 
 
Council expressed the desire to discuss this policy and the impact/role on Visit Bastrop 
as a part of the Joint Workshop on June 14, 2018. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
FY 19 Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Discuss Essential Tourism Asset Policy & Special Events previously funded by City through HOT 
Funds. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund Disbursement Policy DRAFT 

• PowerPoint Presentation on Essential Community Assets 

• PowerPoint Presentation on Visit Bastrop Special Events Application Process 
 



 

 

Exhibit “A” 

 

 

 

 

HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX 

FUND DISBURSEMENT POLICY 

 

CITY OF BASTROP 

 

 

 

 

May 2018 

 

 

 

  



 

 

CITY OF BASTROP 

HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUND DISBURSEMENT PROGRAM 

 

Introduction 

This policy incorporates overall direction for providing hotel occupancy tax (HOT) funds to outside 

agencies, programs, and events in the form of one-time event grants and annual program 

agreements.  The policy replaces all previous policies adopted by the City regarding the 

disbursement of city HOT funds except as specifically noted in this policy.  The proposed policy 

has been divided into three sections: 

 

 Section 1: General Policy Statement 

 Section 2: Annual Essential Tourism Asset Programming HOT Funding 

 Section 3: Special Event-Based HOT Funding 

  

Section 1: General Policy Statement 

 

1.01 Policy Statement 

 

Texas Tax Code Chapter 351 requires that municipal hotel occupancy tax funds be used for 

specific purposes.  First, the funds must be used toward activities that support the tourism and 

lodging industries in the City of Bastrop.  Second, the activities must fall within an enumerated set 

of approved activity types, outlined in Chapter 351 of the Tax Code.  The City’s HOT fund 

disbursement policy exists to ensure that the City’s HOT funds to outside agencies, programs, 

and events are being spent in compliance with state law. This policy is designed to leverage HOT 

funds to attract tourism and strengthen the City’s sales and hotel occupancy tax base by 

maximizing our investment with outside agencies, programs or events. The policy is designed to 

align with the strategic goals and vision of the Bastrop City Council and identified in the 

Comprehensive Plan 2036 to benefit the City’s tourism, hospitality, cultural and lodging industries. 

 

Section 2: Annual Essential Tourism Asset Programming HOT Funding 

 

2.01 Annual Programs Eligible for HOT Funding 

 

The City of Bastrop recognizes that there are outside organizations that are an important 

component to the Bastrop tourism picture. When actively programmed, marketed and leveraged 

properly, certain assets enhance the community’s cultural and heritage scene and encourage 

increased tourism. These Essential Tourism Asset Programming HOT Fund recipients will be 

required to follow a distinct annual funding process as defined in this section. Essential Tourism 

Assets are defined in this policy as:   

 

Organizations that provide cultural or heritage programming and enrichment opportunities 

including museums, art galleries, or performance venues located inside the City of Bastrop.   

 



 

 

The Bastrop City Council will annually adopt a list of current Essential Tourism Assets during 

the budget adoption process.   

  

2.02 Annual Essential Tourism Assets Program HOT Funding Request Process 

 

Prospective Essential Tourism Assets HOT Fund recipients will use the following procedures for 

funding requests annually: 

 

     A. Submit funding requests to the City Manager or their designee by June 15th and in the 

format established by the City Manager or their designee that will be available by request.  

 

     B. Funding requests will be reviewed by the City Manager or their designees as part of the 

City’s annual budget process.  

 

     C. The City Manager or their designees will provide recommendations on each request from 

the prospective Annual Essential Tourism Assets Program HOT Fund requests in the 

annual budget presentation.  

 

     D. The City Council will have final authority for approving contracts and funding amounts, 

including a decision to forgo or amend recommended funding, for any current or 

prospective applicant to the Essential Tourism Asset Program.  

 

2.03 Annual Essential Tourism Assets Program HOT Fund Recipient Contract 

 

An annual contract will be presented on behalf of all Annual Essential Tourism Asset Program 

HOT Fund Recipients to the City Council during the City’s budget process. Contract form will be 

approved by the City Attorney and content will include all necessary reporting and monitoring 

requirements necessary to comply with all federal, state, and local rules and regulations, meet 

the intent of this Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund Policy, and any goals, strategies, plans or standards 

established by the City of Bastrop City Council. 

 

2.04 Reports and Monitoring 

 

The following reports shall be required of all Annual Essential Tourism Assets Program HOT Fund 

Recipients: 

 

Annually:  

•  HOT Revenue Program Report - Narrative of program activities for the organization 

(annually) that includes:  

o Marketing Plan 

o Programming Schedule 

o Strategic Plan 

o Operating Budget 

o Visitor Data including an intercept survey and traffic counts to the agency, 

program or event. 

 

 



 

 

Quarterly  

• Financial statements that describe specifically how HOT funds from the City of Bastrop 

are being utilized; 

• Programming presentations to the general public during Bastrop City Council meetings 

that includes information on:  

Upcoming programs or events 

Updates on past programs or events 

Current or future marketing efforts and partnerships 

Staff or board development  

Current, past or future fundraising initiatives 

 

The City of Bastrop will monitor Annual Essential Tourism Assets Program HOT Fund Recipients 

to ensure compliance with all contractual elements and that the agencies, programs, and events 

are working in accordance with the intent of this policy.     

 

A. Funding for each agency will be made on a schedule as defined in the annual funding 

contract.  

 

B. Continued funding is contingent on the timely submission of all completed quarterly and 

annual reports that meet the requirements of this policy and the contract between the City 

and the recipient. Compliance with the requirements shall be determined by the City 

Manager or their designee.   

 

C. Organizations that receive funds from the Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund will meet the 

requirements of this section and all of the requirements listed in State law regarding the 

proper reporting and accounting of Hotel Occupancy Tax funds.  

 

D. Organizations receiving Hotel Occupancy Tax Funds must also follow all federal, state, 

and local rules and regulations related to buildings open to public access.   

 

E. An annual report will be prepared by all Annual Program HOT Fund Recipients for review 

as part of the budget review process. 

 

F. The City will be allowed access to the recipient’s financial records to allow the City to audit 

or review the Organizations financial records. 

 

 

Section 3:  Special Event-Based HOT Funding 

 

3.01 Overview 

 

Organizations requesting to receive special event-based HOT funds will submit requests with Visit 

Bastrop, a 501c6 destination marketing organization that serves as the official marketing agency, 

brand advocate, and tourism and hospitality development arm of the City of Bastrop.  Visit Bastrop 

will annually allocate special event HOT funds per their contractual agreement with the City of 

Bastrop to outside organizations requesting special event funding.  

 



 

 

3.02 Event HOT Funding Process 

 

The application process will be established by Visit Bastrop and approved by their board. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



WHY? 
2018 Focus Areas:
Uniquely Bastrop, Economic Vitality, Fiscal Responsibility
2018 Work Plan Items:
Economic Vitality # 9, Fiscal Responsibility #9
Comprehensive Plan 2036:
Objective 8.1.3, Objective 8.1.4



Strategic Decision Making

• Chapter 351 of the Local Tax Code: HOT or NOT
• Current FY 18-19 Budget calls for leveraging HOT to 

attract tourism and strengthen our sales tax base
• Strategic VS Just Because



• Replaces any existing policies
• Aligns with Chapter 351
• Designed to leverage the City’s investments
• Pertains to any “outside” funding

• NOT: Visit Bastrop, Main Street, BAIPP, 
Convention Center, City’s Special Event Expenses

• REPLACES: Special Event Funding Program, 
Contractual agreement with the Visitors Center

Proposed Policy



• Defines an Essential Tourism Asset
• Establishes procedures for assets to apply for funding annually
• Contracts presented to Council during the Budget process
• Defines reporting and monitoring of Assets progress to ensure 

strategic investment of HOT is met
• Quarterly Programming Updates to Council and the Public

• Contract outlines expectations, monitoring requirements, non 
negotiables, accountability and transparency to the public and 
the City.

Annual Essential Tourism Asset



• Annual allocation of additional funds to Visit Bastrop ultimately lies with 
Council’s contractual relationship to the entity

• FY 19 $75,000 Proposed

• Visit Bastrop staff developing policy and application process to coincide with 
the City’s budget year. 

• Visit Bastrop is better equipped to track room night generation and provide 
economic impact data

• Stronger accountability and transparency related to HOT being used to generate 
room nights administered by the tourism arm of the City = better investment of 
the City’s HOT

Special Event Hot Funding 



As a reminder…
• Certain events not eligible for HOT, but 

that contribute to our heritage and sense 
of community will be funded directly from 
the City. 

• HOT OR NOT?
• These organizers will work with the 

Hospitality & Downtown Department
• Different from the City’s Community 

Support Funding Program 



Questions? Next Steps?

• Budget Workshop
• Policy to Council
• Meet with Essential Tourism Assets to provide an 

overview of new process and set timelines for FY 19 
requests



1

City of Bastrop – City Council

Visit Bastrop – Board of Directors

Joint Work Session

June 14, 2018

Item 2E



2

HOT Funding Guidelines - Highlights

• Visit Bastrop accepts applications for supplemental HOT funds from eligible groups 

and businesses whose proposed events have the capability of attracting overnight 

visitors to stay in Bastrop hotels.

• By law, the use of HOT funds must bring visitors and increase occupancy in Bastrop 
hotels, including the Hyatt Regency Lost Pines Resort. A good question to ask before 
requesting funding: Will people need to spend the night if they attend this event? 

• If an event will not generate hotel activity, it may not be eligible to receive HOT funds. 
Some exceptions can be made if the event generates a significant amount of sales tax 
revenue and/or generates significant positive PR exposure for the destination.



3

HOT Funding Guidelines - Highlights

• The applicant should provide a complete budget that includes all expenses and a 
detailed marketing plan for which HOT funds will be designated.  

• Requested funding for marketing and advertising should be less than 50% of the 
expected advertising and promotional expenditures. 

• Applicants should also submit a plan documenting they will market and promote the 
event and attract visitors to Bastrop. 



4

HOT Funding Guidelines - Highlights

Preliminary Funding Request 

Visit Bastrop staff will receive applications for qualified events at any point as long as 
there is reasonable time for evaluation and proper planning and support of the event. 
Requests occurring less than 90 days before the event will generally not be accepted 
unless there are significant extenuating circumstances.



5

HOT Funding Guidelines - Highlights

Tracking Room Nights 

It is the applicant’s responsibility to monitor the number of out of town guests who stay in 
Bastrop hotels. Applicants can document overnight hotel visitors by: 

• Working with Hotels to ensure proper tracking or working with Visit Bastrop to secure room 
blocks

• Providing historic information on the number of room nights used during previous years of the 
same event and on the number of guests at hotels that attended the event 

• Providing current information on the size of a room block that has been reserved at hotels for 
anticipated overnight guests attending the event; 

• Submitting a list of zip codes of event attendees/participants in Post Report Documentation

• Distributing a survey to attendees. 



6

HOT Funding Guidelines - Highlights

Additional Required Documentation 

• Projects that have received funding of $5,000 or more for three consecutive years 
must provide documentation of the need for continued funding. Specifically describe 
how the use of funds has:

- Helped the event develop and expand
- Identify other sources of funding if available 
- How the absence of funds would place the continuation of the event in jeopardy 

A Post Event Report must be completed within 60 days of the event. 



7

HOT Funding Guidelines - Highlights

Additional Required Documentation 

• Projects that have received funding of $5,000 or more for three consecutive years 
must provide documentation of the need for continued funding. Specifically describe 
how the use of funds has:

- Helped the event develop and expand
- Identify other sources of funding if available 
- How the absence of funds would place the continuation of the event in jeopardy 

A Post Event Report must be completed within 60 days of the event. 



8

Visit Bastrop Supplemental Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund Applicant Eligibility & Funding Guidelines 

• The Visit Bastrop Board of Directors, through staff, accepts applications for supplemental 
Hotel Occupancy Tax funds from eligible groups and businesses whose proposed projects and 
events have the capability of attracting overnight visitors to stay in Bastrop hotels.

• By law, the use of Hotel Occupancy Tax dollars must bring visitors to the City of Bastrop and 
increase occupancy in Bastrop hotels, including the Hyatt Regency Lost Pines Resort. A good 
question to ask before requesting funding: Will people need to spend the night if they attend 
this event? If an event will not generate any meaningful hotel activity, it may not be eligible to 
receive hotel occupancy tax funds. Some exceptions to the overnight visitation requirement 
can be made should the event generate a significant amount of sales tax revenue for the City 
and/or generate significant positive public relations exposure for the destination.



9

• The requesting organization should provide a complete projected budget that 
includes all expenses and a detailed marketing plan for which HOT funds will be 
designated.  

• Requested funding for marketing and advertising should be less than 50% of the 
expected advertising and promotional expenditures. The purpose of this funding is to 
assist with the marketing of events and projects, not to be a patron of either the event 
or the fundraising beneficiary. 

• Along with the application, applicants should submit a plan documenting how the 
applicant proposes to market and promote the event or project and attract visitors to 
Bastrop. 

Visit Bastrop Supplemental Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund Applicant Eligibility & Funding Guidelines 



10

Visit Bastrop Supplemental Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund Applicant Eligibility & Funding Guidelines 

Tracking Room Nights:

It is the responsibility of the applicant to monitor the number of out of town guests who stay in 
Bastrop lodging properties. Applicants can document the generation of overnight hotel visitors 
by: 
A. Working with Hotels to ensure proper credit and tracking or working with Visit Bastrop to 
secure room blocks from Bastrop hotels;
B. Providing historic information on the number of room nights used during previous years of 
the same events and on the number of guests at hotels and other lodging facilities that 
attended the event(s); 
C. Providing current information on the size of a room block that has been reserved at area 
hotels to accommodate anticipated overnight guests attending the funded event; 
D. Submitting a list of zip codes of event or project attendees/participants in Post Report 
Documentation; and 
E. Distributing a survey to attendees. 



11

Additional Required Documentation 
• Projects that have received funding of $5,000 or more for three consecutive years must 
provide documentation of the need for continued funding. Specifically describe how the 
use of funds has helped the event develop and expand; identify other sources of funding 
is available; and how the absence of funds would place the continuation of the event in 
jeopardy. 
• A Post Event Report must be completed within 60 days of the event. 

Application Process and Timeline 
Preliminary Funding Request 
Visit Bastrop staff will receive applications for qualified events at any point as long as 
there is specific time to allow for a reasonable period of time for evaluation and for 
proper planning and support of the event.  Request for funds for events occurring inside 
of 90 days of the request will most generally not be accepted unless there are significant 
extenuating circumstances.

Visit Bastrop Supplemental Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund Applicant Eligibility & Funding Guidelines 



12

Preliminary Project Funding Request 
Date: 
Name of Event: 
Name of Sponsoring Entity: 

1. Amount of Hotel Occupancy Tax funds requested to fund the project. 

2. Number of local hotel rooms proposed for the event. 

3. Clear and concise description of the proposed project. 

4. Describe specifically how will the funds be used? 

5. Other information you feel important for consideration of the project. 

Please initial: 
_____ The Event “directly enhances and promotes tourism AND the convention and Hotel 
Industry” (Texas Tax Code Section 351.101). 

_____ I understand that if this Preliminary Request is accepted, I must submit a full Application for Hotel Occupancy Tax Funds.

_____ I understand submission of an Application does not guarantee funding. Visit Bastrop Board of Directors will review all Applications for appropriate use of HOT funds 
and funding levels. The Board will make funding recommendations based on the appropriateness of the request and funds available.

Application completed by: 
Contact Information: 
Submit Funding Request to: Visit Bastrop 
PO Box 1200
Bastrop, TX 78602

Visit Bastrop Supplemental Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund Applicant Eligibility & Funding Guidelines 


	June 14 2018 Agenda Executed
	2A - 1 Contract Staff Report
	2A - 2 Visit Bastrop Resolution & Executed Contract
	2A - 3 VB Business Plan
	2A - 4 Approved Bastrop DMO Bylaws
	2A - 5 Contract Overview
	2B - 1 Discuss contract
	2B - 2 Contract Presentation
	2C - 1 HOT Report 101
	2C - 2 Visit Bastrop 101
	2D - 1 Visit Bastrop Staff Report- OBrien-1
	2D - 2 Visit Bastrop- April 2018 President's Report - OBrien-2
	2E - 1  HOT Fund Staff Report
	2E - 2 HOT Fund Policy Draft
	2E - 3 Essential Tourism Asset Presentation
	2E - 4 VB Special Event HOT Application Process

